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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

Year ended 31 December

HZ12831BILEFE
2019 2018 Increase
20195 2018%F 2
RM’000 RM’000
<HE TLHER
Results (Audited) (Audited)
ES (REX) (&%)
Revenue & 71,526 67,095 6.6%
Gross profit E A 29,622 26,733 10.8%
Profit before income tax expense B BT 1S 851 B S AR 19,015 16,615 14.4%
Profit for the year F R T
(excluding listing expenses) (TBRELETRXZ) 16,593 15,804 5.0%
Profit for the year F WA 13,053 11,780 10.8%
Basic and diluted earnings per share BRERREERT
(RM cents) (2HEHM) 2.2 2.0 10.8%
As at As at
31 December 31 December Increase/
2019 2018 (decrease)
20194 20184
12A31H 12A318  #m/ Cid)
RM’000 RM’000
°H FToER
Financial Position (Audited) (Audited)
B # AR (REZ) (&#EZ)
Total assets BEE 70,234 60,244 16.6%
Loans and borrowings BREER 16,388 18,406 (11.0%
Shareholders’ equity A& R AE S 47,992 34,939 37.4%
Current ratio (times) MBI (£F) 7.5 5.3 40.8%
Gearing ratio (%) BEBELLE(%) 34.1 52.7 (18.5%
Return on equity (%) 1 75 18] 3 2R (%) 27.2 33.7 6.5)%
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEER
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, | am delighted
to present the first annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Founded in 2000, the Group is a Malaysian-based outsourced document
management services provider and related software application and
enterprise software solutions developer. Our Group’s services include
the provision of document management services and enterprise software
solutions in Malaysia and Singapore.

Our major customers include a number of highly reputable commercial
enterprises in the banking, insurance and retail industries and are located
in Malaysia and Singapore. We have a stable business based on our long-
term relationship with our major customers. As we possess the technical
capability, flexibility of customising our software to meet our customers’
specific needs and ability to provide accurate and efficient processing, we
believe this has led to a majority of our customers to continue using our
services.

The Group’s competitive strengths have contributed to our continued
success and distinguished us from our competitors. We believe our
competitive strengths lie in four key specific areas of the business namely:
(1) proprietary technology and process advantage;

(2)  established and loyal customer base;

(8)  we are an acceptable service supplier to banks; and

(4)  experienced management team with a proven track record of
delivering growth.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®E

NEW LISTING

The shares of the Company were successfully listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 27 March 2020. The Listing reinforced our sense
of mission and marks an exciting new chapter for the Company as we
look forward to increasing our investment in technology to achieve a rapid
development of our technology platform to realise our business goals. We
believe the strength of our technology will be the competitive advantage
and allows us to progress towards our growth and profit targets through
the rapid development of products and services to a wider group of
customers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of 2019, our Group recorded an increase in revenue by
6.6% from approximately RM67.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to approximately RM71.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. The increase was mainly due to increase in revenue generated from
the provision of enterprise software solutions from approximately RM1.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RM7.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Our gross profit increased by approximately RM2.9 million or 10.8% from
approximately RM26.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately RM29.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. Our
gross profit margin increased by approximately 1.6% from approximately
39.8% for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately 41.4%
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The increase in gross profit and
gross profit margin was mainly attributable to: (i) significant increase
in provision of enterprise software solution services to our customers
which have higher gross profit margin; and (i) increase in provision of
electronic services such as electronic statements and delivery services
and decrease of printing and mail fulfilment services provided to our
customers under outsourced document management services due to the
ongoing trend of the greater adoption of document digitalisation within
enterprises. Electronic services generally have higher gross profit margin
as the process is highly automated using streamline applications while
more cost was involved in printing and mail fulfilment services such as
postage charges and materials.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®E

Our profit for the year increased by approximately RM1.3 million or 10.8%
from approximately RM11.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to approximately RM13.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
which mainly due to the aforesaid reasons net off by the recognition of
one-off listing expenses totalled approximately RM26.6 million, of which
RM3.5 million (2018: RM4.0 million) have impacted the profit or loss of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019. These expenses are
significant and have heavily impacted the Group’s results for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2019. It should be noted however, that
these expenses are one-off in nature and will not have any impact on the
Group’s financial performance after the Listing.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

The outsourced document management services industry has evolved
rapidly along with the advances in internet technology; and we have
foreseen and adapted our business model to this change in stride
by continuously evolving and renewing our service offerings under
the Streamline Suite applications towards more efficient document
processing, electronic delivery fulfilment and solutions.

Apart from this digitalisation trend, the global adoption of software as a
service or subscription (“SaaS”) for software application solution delivery
will increase demand from existing and new customers to adopt our
Streamline Electronic Document Warehouse (“EDW”) through SaaS
where services are delivered from our data centre. Furthermore, as
our customers are mostly financial institutions, our Streamline EDW or
services will have to be hosted in a Tier 3 data centre.

In light of the above, we aim to upgrade our IT infrastructure and expand
our capacity to host and provide our Streamline EDW through SaaS in
a Tier 3 data center facilities in Cyberjaya, Selangor, Malaysia. This new
data centre facilities will contribute to our Group’s outsourced document
management services by allowing our Group to enhance our document
hosting capability for electronic distribution and enterprise software
solution services to our customers.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®E

FUTURE OUTLOOK

With the outbreak of coronavirus pandemic (“COVID-19"), Malaysia has
taken preventive measure, the Movement Control Order (‘MCQO”) on 18
March 2020, thus a movement control was implemented throughout the
country with the closure of all government and private premises except
those involved in essential services. However, as we are involved in
essential services, we moved swiftly to address staff health and safety,
and operational and supply chains matters to enable us to continue to
operate effectively throughout the MCO period. As there is opportunity in
every challenge, we aim to turn this into an opportunity to increase our
market share by providing the best services to our customers.

APPRECIATION

Again we are proud to mark this exciting new chapter for the Company,
and look forward to provide long-term and competitive returns to
Shareholders and investors in the future and on behalf of the Board of
Directors of the Company, | would like to express my appreciation to the
relentless support of our valued Shareholders and customers. Last but
not least, my gratitude goes to the management team and all staffs for
their commitment, dedication and tireless efforts in helping the Listing of
the Company a reality.

Ling Sheng Hwang
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 April 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

We are a Malaysian-based outsourced document management services
provider and related software applications and enterprise software
solutions developer. Our outsourced document management services
include (i) electronic document delivery; (ii) document print & mail
fulfilment; (i) MICR Cheque print & mail fulfilment; (iv) medical ID card print
& mail fulfilment; and (v) document imaging and scanning services.

In or around 2005, we commenced developing our proprietary software
applications that focused on digital transformation of documents and
information and providing outsourced services in electronic document,
print document delivery and document management hosting services
for Malaysian companies in banking, insurance and retail industries. In
addition to using our proprietary software for our outsourced document
management services, we also provide enterprise software solutions to
our customers.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Our revenue increased by approximately RM4.4 million or 6.6% from
approximately RM67.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to approximately RM71.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. As a result of increase in gross profit, our net profit increased by
approximately 10.8% from approximately RM11.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RM13.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

We intend to achieve sustainable growth in our business and create
long-term Shareholders’ value. To achieve our goals, we proposed to
implement the following strategies:

1. Expanding our Group’s data processing and technical capacity
(@ Build a new data centre to upgrade our information
technology infrastructure for expanding our outsourced
document management services and our enterprise software
solutions
(o)  Strengthen our Group’s technical operation support team
(c)  Expand our research and development team to develop

new applications within our Streamline Suite and front-end
solutions

10 C-Link Squared Limited Annual Report 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN W R

2. Expanding our market presence locally and exploring expansion
regionally to capture further market share

(@  Maintain and strengthen our relationship with existing
customers, and capture new customers within Malaysia and
Singapore

(b) Pursue appropriate strategic acquisitions and business
opportunities

3. Increasing our Group’s visibility, operational efficiency and
profitability through obtaining MSC Malaysia status

Except for Listing expenses as disclosed in the Prospectus, to the best of
our Directors’ knowledge, since 31 December 2019 and up to the date of
this annual report, there was no material adverse change to our financial
position or business prospects.

As a result of the outbreak of COVID-19 and the extension of the MCO up
to 28 April 2020 in Malaysia, the negotiation of the proposed acquisition
of a parcel of land for construction of our new Tier 3 data centre
could not begin in April 2020 (as disclosed in the Prospectus) and can
commence only after the MCO is lifted, or in early May 2020. The Group
will continuously monitor the changes of the situation and make timely
response in the future.

RESULT OF OPERATIONS
Revenue

Our total revenue amounted to approximately RM67.1 million and RM71.5
million for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, respectively,
which was mainly derived from provision of outsourced document
management services and enterprise software solutions.

Outsourced document management services

Outsourced document management services mainly involve electronic
document delivery, document print and mail fulfiment and document
imaging and scanning services.

Our revenue generated from the provision of outsourced document
management services represent approximately 97.1% and 90.2% of
the total revenue for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019,
respectively. Our revenue from the provision of outsourced document
management services maintained at a similar level of approximately
RM®65.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 and approximately
RM64.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Enterprise software solutions

We provide enterprise software solutions to our customers using our
proprietary streamline software and generated revenue mainly from license
fee, maintenance fee and implementation fee.

Our revenue generated from the provision of enterprise software
solutions represent approximately 2.9% and 9.8% of the total revenue
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, respectively. Our
revenue from provision of enterprise software solutions increased from
approximately RM1.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately RM7.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
increase was mainly due to () revenue of approximately RM2.5 million
contributed from an existing customer which is a financial institution
in Singapore for provision of Streamline Output Management System
(“OMS”) solution services and related software license fee; and (i) revenue
of approximately RM2.3 million for provision of Streamline Suite solution
services contributed from a new customer which is a private company in
Singapore engaged in the provision of information technology solutions.

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales increased slightly by approximately RM1.5 million or
3.8% from approximately RM40.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to approximately RM41.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. Such increase was mainly attributable to (i) the increase in cost of
purchase of materials, which was mainly due to increase of medical ID
card printing, mail fulfilment services provided and increase of supply of
materials for document printing and mail fulfiment; and (i) the increase in
upkeep of assets mainly due to the increase of maintenance expenses for
the printers.

12 C-Link Squared Limited Annual Report 2019
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit increased by approximately RM2.9 million or 10.8% from
approximately RM26.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately RM29.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. Our
gross profit margin increased by approximately 1.6% from approximately
39.8% for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately 41.4%
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The increase in gross profit and
gross profit margin was mainly attributable to: (i) significant increase
in provision of enterprise software solution services to our customers
which have higher gross profit margin; and (i) increase in provision of
electronic services such as electronic statements and delivery services
and decrease of printing and mail fulfilment services provided to our
customers under outsourced document management services due to the
ongoing trend of the greater adoption of document digitalisation within
enterprises. Electronic services generally have higher gross profit margin
as the process is highly automated using streamline applications while
more cost was involved in printing and mail fulfilment services such as
postage charges and materials.

Other income and gains

Our other income and gains increased from approximately RM241,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RM566,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019, which was mainly due to the increase in
bank interest received.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses maintained at a similar level of approximately
RM9.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 and approximately
RM10.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Finance costs

Our finance costs increased from approximately RM410,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RM915,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019, which was mainly due to the interest of a new
term loan of RM19.0 million which was drawn down in August 2018.
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Profit before tax

Our profit before tax increased by approximately RM2.4 million or 14.4%
from approximately RM16.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to approximately RM19.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. Such increase was primarily due to an increase in gross profit of
approximately RM2.9 million.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense increased from approximately RM4.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RM6.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019. Such increase was mainly due to the
increase in profit before tax and the increase in non-deductible expenses
mainly attributable to interest on term loan.

Profit for the year and net profit margin

Our profit for the year increased by approximately RM1.3 million or 10.8%
from approximately RM11.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to approximately RM13.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2019, which was mainly due to the reasons as mentioned above. Our
net profit margin increased from approximately 17.6% for the year ended
31 December 2018 to approximately 18.2% for the year ended 31
December 2019.
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Discussion of Certain Key Items in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Net Current Assets

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our current assets and
current liabilities as at the dates indicated:

ETEEREMBRARRERNNR
RBEEFE
TREAFIRMBERNREENRDEERRDE
EUECE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
(RM’000) (RM’000)
(FLEFH) (F2&EH)
(audited) (audited)

(BEZ) (RER)

Current assets REBEE

Trade receivables Z 5 EWRIE 19,229 18,297
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TETFRIE - & R H A UK IE 4,497 2,512
Due from related parties JiE Y e 5 IR 3,893 3,375
Cash and bank balances We RIRTTHES 26,097 18,351
Total current assets MENEERE 53,716 42,535
Current liabilities REBAE

Trade payables Z 5 e FRIA 1,193 1,097
Other payables and accruals HiERNRIBERETER 2,161 3,677
Loans and borrowings and lease liabilities BERMEBEULEEAE 2,189 2,042
Income tax payables FEFR1S R 1,603 1,153
Total current liabilities MEVEERTE 7,146 7,969
Net current assets RBEEFE 46,570 34,566

QOur net current assets increased from approximately RM34.6 million as at
31 December 2018 to approximately RM46.6 million as at 31 December
2019, which was mainly due to the increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables and cash and bank balances.

EZMHORBEEFEBH2018F12A31H ML
34 6EBLEHEME22019F12A31H B4
46 6EBLER NETEREARBENRE B
T B B U SR TE DA K SR AT 45 B/ 48 INFT B o
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Trade receivables

Our trade receivables increased from approximately RM18.3 million as at
31 December 2018 to approximately RM19.2 million as at 31 December
2019. Such increase was in line with the increase in revenue and mainly
due to the amount due from one customer in Singapore for enterprise
software solution services.

The table below sets out our average trade receivable turnover days for
the relevant years indicated:

ZE 3 EWFE

BMWE S EBGRIEHE £20185F12A31HK
#183E B EHIEZH E2019F12A31H K
H192E BSH F oz MBS M—B &
FEMRBDEE AR RSB — BN
WE PR FRBFTE

TREINBEMRARERFENFHE 5 R
HIABRE:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
Average trade receivable turnover days (Note) 198 5 e R E R E (KEE) 96 89

Note: Average trade receivable turnover days is calculated as the average of the
beginning and ending trade receivable balances for the year, divided by the
revenue for that year, multiplied by 365 days.

Our average trade receivables turnover days increased from
approximately 89 days for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately 96 days for the year ended 31 December 2019 mainly
due to increase in trade receivable balance due to the reason mentioned
above.

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Our prepayments, deposits and other receivables increased from
approximately RM2.5 million as at 31 December 2018 to approximately
RM4.5 million as at 31 December 2019 mainly due to the increase in
prepayment for listing expenses and the increase in deposit for postage
services.
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Trade payables

Our trade payables maintained at a similar level of approximately
RM1.1 million and RM1.2 million as at 31 December 2018 and 2019,
respectively. The credit term on trade payables is generally 30 days.

The table below sets out our average trade payable turnover days for the
relevant years indicated:

g 5 ENRE

A E 5 e 3RIE 20184 2019412 A 31
BERSBEKT 9011 BESEHR2
BELER - BHRMNRENEEH —RAI0
§Eo

TRHFNRMRARERFEFIE S ENFR
BEXE:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
Average trade payable turnover days (Note) 98 5 IR E R E (KEE) 10 17

Note: Average trade payable turnover days is calculated as the average of the
beginning and ending trade payable balances for the year, divided by the
cost of sales for that year, multiplied by 365 days.

The average trade payable turnover days decreased from approximately
17 days for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately 10 days
for the year ended 31 December 2019 mainly due to high beginning trade
payable balance for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Other payables and accruals

Our other payables and accruals decreased from approximately RM3.7
million as at 31 December 2018 to approximately RM2.2 million as at
31 December 2019 mainly due to the decrease of accrual for listing
expenses.

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

Our Group’s property, plant and equipment primarily consists of land
and buildings, renovation of building, computer and software and plant
and machinery. The decrease in the carrying amounts of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets from approximately RM14.9
million as at 31 December 2018 to approximately RM13.1 million as at 31
December 2019 was mainly due to the depreciation provided for the year.

Mk FHESENRBREXBNIEERFEFIR
FRE HRMNFTBLEHOTHERAZEEOH
ERAB RS KRETE ©

FIE G ENFERE XA E2018F 124
TR IEFERNNTRB D EHE2019F12 731
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e AP9 Y EL B 5 FRIE K FE AT B A 12018412 A
31HMKS7TEESEH HR A E2019F12H831H
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R AR

NE BERREEAEEE

AEBOYE BEAIEIZRELHRIE
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12A31A M A14.98 B2 5 R E2019F12
A31E®MAIBIBELER T 2ANFAET
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Intangible assets

Our Group’s intangible assets include Streamline OMS, Streamline
EDW, Streamline Document Management System (‘DMS”) phase | and
Streamline DMS phase Il. As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, Streamline
OMS, Streamline EDW and Streamline DMS phase | are available for use
and Streamline DMS phase Il is under development. The carrying amount
of our Group’s internally developed technologies was approximately
RM2.8 million and RM3.4 million as at 31 December 2018 and 2019,
respectively. The increase in carrying amount was due to continuous
development of our Streamline DMS phase .

Capital and Contractual Commitments

We had no material capital commitments as at 31 December 2018 and
2019.

Indebtedness

The following table sets forth our indebtedness as of the dates indicated:

AN B K & TP & E B & Streamline OMS
Streamline EDW - Streamline Document
Management System ([DMS ) &I & &
Streamline DMSEIIF% B - 7020184F 220194 12
H31H - Streamline OMS - Streamline EDW &
Streamline DMSE 1% B AT 4 A - M1 Streamline
DMSEE I Bt TE7£ 79 3 - 1220184 J2 2019412
A31H  AEBRMARERMHEREEES L
AC8EESERMI4EESHH -REMEEM
T5 B R 45 48 57 3% Streamline DMS S IR EX FT 2 -

BAREHEE
20184 K&2019F12A31H  H MM E AL &
REREPE-

&%
TREFIRMBREMR B OES

As at 31 December

HZE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
(RM’000) (RM’000)
(F£EH) (FL&FH)
(audited) (audited)
(f&#EZ) (K= %)
Current liabilities RBEE
Bank loan RITER 2,118 1,975
Lease liabilities HEaE 71 67
2,189 2,042
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank loan RITER 14,270 16,431
Lease liabilities HEaE 234 305
14,504 16,736
16,693 18,778
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Bank loan

The bank loan denominated in Ringgit Malaysia amounting to RM19.0
million was drawn down in August 2018 for working capital purpose and
is repayable by instalments for 96 months.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the bank loan bore a floating interest
rate at the bank’s base lending rate minus 2.1% per annum. The interest
rates on bank loan as at 31 December 2018 and 2019 are 4.90% and
4.75% per annum, respectively.

For further information on bank loans and maturity profile, please refer
to Note 19 of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements to this
annual report.

Lease liabilities

The lease liabilities mainly represented lease liabilities payable to Director
of the Group amounted to approximately RM372,000 and RM305,000 as
at 31 December 2018 and 2019, respectively.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group maintains a solid financial position and as at 31 December
2019 was in a net cash position. The Group is able to meet its obligations
when they become due in its ordinary and usual course of business. The
current ratio, being the ratio of current assets to current liabilities, was
around 7.5 as at 31 December 2019 (as at 31 December 2018: 5.3). The
Group’s working capital requirements were mainly financed by internal
resources.

Treasury Policy

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policy and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

To manage the liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s
assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements from time to time.

Charges on Group Assets

Save as disclosed in Note 19 of the Notes to the consolidated financial
statements to this annual report, no asset of the Group was charged to
secure bank loans and other borrowings granted to the Group as at 31
December 2019.

RITER
ERAGSHETENIQOAEBSHFRITE
FHH2018F8 ARE fEEEE B IW/AD6
&R HHEE-

20184 K2019F 128318  RITE R LR
TEEERFRFHTF2A%NZEF T8 - R
20184 K20195F12A31H " SRITEHWMFF X
2 B 54.90% K 4.75% °

BRRTERLERIMBERNE—FFE B
RN FREEMHRRM AP ZMFE19 -

HEEE
HERBRFEERNASEEENHESE
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Litigation and Contingent Liabilities

There was no outstanding litigation nor any other contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2019. Save as aforesaid or as otherwise disclosed
herein, we did not have any outstanding loan capital issued and
outstanding or agreed to be issued, bank overdrafts, loans or other
similar indebtedness, liabilities under acceptances, or acceptable
credits, debentures, mortgages, charges, hire purchase commitments,
guarantees or other material contingent liabilities at the close of business
on 31 December 2019.

Directors have confirmed that there has not been any material adverse
change in our Group’s indebtedness and contingent liabilities since 31

RARBAEE

R2019F12 4318 » ANEEBEE (A R IREFAS
AR EM AR E Bk E X AT s AN E R H1T
WEEIN B2019F12 431 B & £ R R4 A
BT AT R B B 1T RBITIE SNSRI 5T o8 T 3
THREEERER RTEX BRHHEAMLE
LES A AENELEE  EEE K5 K
HEEAE ERIEMEAIAREE-

EECHR ARENEHLEAREEBE2019F
12AMAREREERAFRAMY BETMERTD

December 2019 and up to the date of this annual report. FI
Key Financial Ratios FENBLER
As at 31 December
M12H831H
Notes 2019 2018
=4 20194 20184
Current ratio (times) MBI () 1 7.5 5.3
Gearing ratio (%) BARBELE(%) 2 34.1 52.7
Debt to equity ratio (%) B EERLE(%) 3 N/ATRE A 1.2
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEEE
Notes 2019 2018
k=3 20195 20184
Interest coverage ratio (times) FMEBER(B) 4 21.8 41.5
Return on total assets (%) 428 7 [0 3R R (%) 5 18.6 19.6
Return on equity (%) 1 25 18] 37 2R (%) 6 27.2 33.7
Notes: M &E
(1) Current ratio is calculated based on our total current assets divided by our (1) B EIZEEZREF KA RN E ELER A
total current liabilities as of the end of each reporting year. MEBEBRENE
(2)  Gearing ratio is calculated based on the total loans and borrowings by the (@) ~ BRAGELETIZBEMF RN E R RERR AL

total equity as at the end of the respective year and multiplied by 100%.
©)) Debt to equity ratio is calculated based on the net debt divided by the total

equity as at the end of the respective year and multiplied by 100%. Net
debts are defined to include all borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents.
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(4) Interest coverage ratio is calculated based on profit for the year before
finance costs and income tax divided by our finance costs for each reporting
year.

(5) Return on total assets is calculated based on profit for the year divided by
our total assets as of the end of each reporting year and multiplied by 100%.

6) Return on equity is calculated based on profit for the year divided by our total
equity as of the end of each reporting year and multiplied by 100%.

Current ratio

Our current ratio increased from approximately 5.3 times as at 31
December 2018 to approximately 7.5 times as at 31 December 2019
mainly due to the increase in current assets as a result of increase in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables of approximately RM2.0
million and increase in cash and bank balances of approximately RM7.7
million as at 31 December 2019.

Gearing ratio

Our gearing ratio decreased from approximately 52.7% as at 31
December 2018 to approximately 34.1% as at 31 December 2019 mainly
due to the repayment of the bank loan during 2019.

Debt to equity ratio

Our Group remained at a net cash position as at 31 December 2019. Our
Group’s debt to equity ratio was approximately 1.2% as at 31 December
2018 mainly due to the bank loan of RM19.0 milion drawn down in
August 2018.

Interest coverage ratio

Our Group'’s interest coverage ratio decreased from approximately 41.5
times for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately 21.8 times
for the year ended 31 December 2019 mainly due to the increase of
finance cost.

Return on total assets

Our return on total assets decreased slightly from approximately 19.6%
for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately 18.6% for the
year ended 31 December 2019 mainly due to the increase in total assets
as at 31 December 2019 as a result of increase in prepayments, deposit
and other receivables and cash and bank balance.

@ MEBEEETRBBEKAKPEH A FEER
BASMEFENREKATE -

6 HEERBEDRFABRFRASREFRNE

BEBIRIA100%:1E -

6) B ETIEFRE RS RS FREES
B ELA100%HE »

BN EL =

BB L R 2018412 A31 B 89 475.3(5 1%
ZE2019F12831EM Y755 T EHRTHE
EEIEANPTEL - MR B & E AN Y B R 201945 12
A31BTEMFIE - 2e R E M EURGRIBIE MN4)2.0
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SERATE

BEXREEHE

KPP ERBELREH2018F12A31H L)
52. 7% £20195F12 A31H M 4934.1% T EH
RR2019F EERITE R -
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Return on equity

Our return on equity decreased from approximately 33.7% for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to approximately 27.2% for the year ended 31
December 2019 mainly due to the increase in total equity because of the
net profit retained for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Significant Investment Held, Material Acquisition
and Disposal

Save as disclosed in this annual report and the Prospectus, the Group
did not hold any significant investment nor did the Group carry out any
material acquisition and disposal during the year.

Capital Structure

The Shares of the Company were listed on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 27 March 2020. There has been no change in the capital
structure of the Company since then. As at 31 December 2019, the
capital structure of the Company comprised mainly issued share capital
and reserves.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital
Assets

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Application of Proceeds from
the Listing” in this section and other sections in this annual report and
the Prospectus, the Group does not have other future plans for material
investments and capital assets as at the date of this annual report.
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Treasury Policy and Principal Risks and
Uncertainties

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group’s ordinary
activities expose it to various financial risks, including interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The management monitors closely our
Group’s exposures to financial risks to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner. The Group strives to reduce
exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and
evaluations of the financial status of its customers. The Group is exposed
to interest rate risk arising from bank borrowings. The Group does not
use derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate
fluctuations. However, the Group manages to obtain the most favourable
interest rates available whenever the Group obtains additional financing
through bank borrowings. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely
monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure
of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can meset its
obligations from time to time.

For further information, please refer to Note 25 of the Notes to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group considers itself having no foreign currency risk because it has
no significant foreign currency transactions, and no significant financial
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies outstanding during
the year ended 31 December 2019. The Group did not engage in any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Board will continue to review and consider splitting the roles of
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company at
a time when it is appropriate by taking into account the circumstances of
the Group as a whole.
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Application of Proceeds from the Listing R L™ SRR
Trading of the Shares of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock ~ ANZA R H £ A EARIG R X PFEIRE & -

Exchange commenced on the Listing Date. The net proceeds from the =M PIGFIBFFEL) R75.88 & BT T FA15
Listing amounted to approximately HK$75.8 million. The net proceeds are ~ KIB FFE SRR ER AR ENAEE A -

expected to be used for the purposes disclosed in the Prospectus.

A summary of the expected use of the net proceeds from the Listing is set BB F TSI FHETE BB EOBI E 8510

out below: ™
Percentage of
Business objectives as stated total net Planned use of
in the Prospectus BREERMAEKEE proceeds net proceeds
LB RIEFE Fr8RIEFE
BEMNEDL WEr B A&
HK$ "million
BEATT
(approximate)
(&)
To increase technological capability and NS H R B R E
capacity to develop into other market EH FIHHHNEED
vertical/parallels 88.6% 67.2
— to build a new Tier 3 compliant data —ER—AFE D RIZEN
centre and upgrade of information R O RAREMBH
technology infrastructure AR 76.7% 58.1
— to strengthen the Group’s technical — INsa AR EEHFITEE T IF Z5
operation support system 6.8% 5.2
— to expand the software development —BARAE B R BB E X
team of the Group 5.1% 3.9
To expand market presence locally and EEAR#TEHERKREZEHER
explore expansion regionally to capture 3 —$EER TS HEH
further market share 11.4% 8.6
— to step up the Group's marketing and —MAAEBNEHEHRERNE
sale efforts to reach out to LASE R & P
new customers 3.6% 2.7
— to be used in potential strategic — LA PRV 1 BB S UG B R R
acquisition and business opportunities 7.8% 5.9

The net proceeds have been or will be applied in the manner consistent ~ FT15RUIEF 58 2 & kG & LA BRIF AR 42 [ R 2RET
with the use of proceeds as disclosed in the section headed “Future  ZI R PTG FIAREE Ak | — B8 PTIRER AV PRIS RIA
Plans and Proposed Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus. In particular, RBE—BOFXBFH-LHE 8 T HEREE
approximately HK$12.0 million of the net proceeds had been applied for ~ZEARFHREH - SR FEF L1208 88T
paying the professional service fees in relation to the construction of a B AR X[ EE R —ERF & = RITLEH) T EHE+
new Tier 3 compliant data centre from the Listing Date up to the date of DB BRI ZEXRBE - AEFILFENBT R
this annual report. The remaining unutilised portion of the net proceeds FAEHAEFAB BB E S ZMIRIT-

has been deposited in reputable banks in Hong Kong.
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BEEEN W R

Employees

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately 181 employees.
The total remuneration cost (including staff costs capitalised as software
development expenditure) amounted to RM8.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 (as compared to RM9.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2018).

The terms of employment of employees conform to normal commercial
practice. The remuneration of the employees, Directors and senior
management of the Group is set and paid on the basis of the relevant
employees’ qualifications, competence, work performance, industry
experience, relevant market trend and the Group’s operating results etc.
Discretionary bonuses are granted to employees based on merit and in
accordance with industry practice. Other benefits including share options,
retirement benefits, subsidised medical care, pension funds and training
programmes are offered to eligible employees.

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme. Please refer to the
section headed “Share Option” in the Directors’ Report to this annual
report.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang, aged 55, was appointed as a Director on 13
June 2018 and re-designated as an Executive Director and appointed as
the chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer with effect from 15
February 2019. Mr. F Ling is the chairman of the Nomination Committee
and the member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. F Ling co-founded
our Group with Mr. W Ling in February 2000. He is responsible for
overseeing and managing corporate strategic planning and business
development of our Group. He is also the director of all of the companies
of our Group. Prior to co-founding our Group, Mr. F Ling was a director
of Roda Sakti Sdn Bhd (principally engaged in logistic services) from May
1996 to March 2010.

Mr. F Ling graduated from University of Kansas, Kansas of the United
States with a Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engineering and a Master
of Business Administration in May 1987 and in May 1989, respectively.

Mr. F Ling is the brother of Mr. W Ling, our Executive Director and the
brother of Mr. S Ling, our Non-Executive Director. Mr. F Ling’s interest
in the Shares are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company or Any of Its Associated Corporations” of
the Directors’ Report in this annual report.

Mr. Ling Sheng Chung, aged 51, was appointed as a Director on 13
June 2018 and re-designated as an Executive Director and appointed
as the Chief Technical Officer with effect from 15 February 2019. Mr. W
Ling is the member of each of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Mr. W Ling co-founded our Group with Mr. F
Ling in February 2000. He is responsible for overseeing and managing
information technology and software development of our Group. He is
also the director of all of the companies of our Group. From 1993 to
1996, Mr. W Ling was an analysis engineer of CAE TECH, INC engaged
in Computer Aided Engineering. From 1992 to 1993, Mr. W Ling was
an engineer of Engineering Mechanics Research Corporation (principally
engaged in the development of computer aided engineering software).

Mr. W Ling obtained a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering
and a Master of Science in Mechanical Engineering from the University
of Kansas, Kansas of the United States in May 1990 and October 1992,
respectively.

Mr. W Ling is the brother of Mr. F Ling, our Executive Director and the
brother of Mr. S Ling, our Non-Executive Director. Mr. W Ling’s interest
in the Shares are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company or Any of Its Associated Corporations” of
the Directors’ Report in this annual report.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ling Sheng Shyan, aged 58, was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director with effect from 15 February 2019. Mr. S Ling is the member
of the Audit Committee. He is responsible for advising on the corporate
and business strategies of our Group. Mr. S Ling has been the Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer of Compuforms (principally engaged
in designing and printing Computer forms) since 1985. He had been
the Executive Director of Rafreq Maschinenbau Sdn. Bhd. (principally
engaged in machinery design & fabrication) for nine years until July 2018.
He has also been the Director of Rejoice Home Sdn. Bhd. (principally
engaged in investment holding) and Rejoice Homes Ltd (principally
engaged in buying and selling of own real estate) since December 2005
and February 2017, respectively.

Mr. S Ling obtained the Secondary School Honour Graduation Diploma
from High Park School and the Ministry of Education, Ontario in Toronto,
Canada in August 1979.

Mr. S Ling is the brother of Mr. F Ling and Mr. W Ling, the Executive
Directors.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Yan Kit (ZE££) , aged 49, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director on 11 March 2020. Mr. Lee is the member of
each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Lee is responsible for providing independent
judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
key appointments and standard of conduct of our Group. Mr. Lee has
been a Director and the Chief Executive Officer of National Arts Travel
Limited (principally engaged in providing travel related products), which
is a subsidiary of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
(“NA Group”) (HKEx Stock Code: 8228), a company listed on GEM
operated by the Stock Exchange, since February 2019 and June 2018,
respectively. Mr. Lee has further been appointed as the Director of
investor relationship and marketing of NA Group, Chief Executive Officer
of National Arts Production & Promotions Limited (a subsidiary of NA
Group and principally engaged in provision of promotional performance
services in Hong Kong) and a Director of artiste management of National
Arts Entertainment Limited (a subsidiary of NA Group and principally
engaged in provision of management services to artistes in Hong Kong)
since February 2020. Mr. Lee was a volunteer director of Sowers Action
(Non-Governmental Organization) from October 2016 to October 2018,
and has been the vice chairman of its board of directors since October
2018 and the volunteer honorary advisor of Sowers Action Orchestra
since February 2019. Mr. Lee is and has been a founding director of Hong
Kong Young Chief Officers’ Association since November 2017 and was
appointed as a vice chairman of the organizing committee on the event of
the 1st Hong Kong Youth Festival in April 2018 and the president of the
external affairs committee for 2018 to 2019 in December 2018.
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Mr. Lee has over 20 years of experience in the banking and financial
industry. Mr. Lee has been the Director of Hoyan Group International
Limited (“Hoyan Group”) since September 2016. Within Hoyan Group,
he served as the president with respect to the banking, public relations
& consulting services of SBG Holdings Limited (principally engaged in
the operation of beauty medical centres) between September 2016 and
September 2017 and chief marketing officer of HKST Group Holdings
Limited (principally engaged in travel services and education consultancy
business) between September 2016 and May 2018. From September
2006 to July 2016, Mr. Lee held various positions at Dah Sing Bank
Limited (principally engaged in financial services and banking) including
team head, regional head, general manager and project manager. He
also acted as the senior business financial manager and team manager
of Standard Chartered Bank (HK) Limited from June 2004 to September
2006. Between January 2001 and June 2004, he served at DBS Kwong
On Bank Limited (currently known as DBS (Hong Kong) Limited), with his
last position as a vice president. From April 2000 to January 2001, Mr.
Lee worked as an assistant manager of Wing Hang Bank Limited. He was
an officer at Sin Hua Bank Ltd., Hong Kong branch (currently known as
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited) from March 1996 to April 2000.

Mr. Lee obtained his Bachelor of Arts from the University of Manitoba
in May 1993 in Canada and a certificate of business management from
Ryerson Polytechnic University in June 1996 in Canada. Mr. Lee also
obtained a Master of Science in financial management from the University
of London in the United Kingdom in December 2000 as an external
student.
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Ms. Eugenia Yang (BT &), aged 43, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director on 11 March 2020. Ms. Yang is the
member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Ms. Yang is responsible for providing
independent judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, key appointments and standard of conduct of our Group.
Ms. Yang has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of EFT
Solutions Holdings Ltd (HKEx Stock Code: 8062) (principally engaged
in the provision of electronic fund transfer at point-of-sale solutions), a
company listed on GEM operated by the Stock Exchange, from August
2017 to September 2019. Ms. Yang was an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Nority International Group Limited (currently known as Wai
Chun Bio-Technology Limited and principally engaged in the manufacture
and sale of modified starch and other biochemical products) (HKEx
Stock Code: 660), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from August 2005 to May 2006 and an independent non-
executive director of () Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited (HKEx
Stock Code: 8147) (principally engaged in the research and development,
manufacture and sale of consumer electronic products) from June 2014
to July 2017, and (i) China Oil Gangran Energy Group Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Fairson Holdings Limited and principally engaged in
energy related business) (HKEx Stock Code: 8132) from August 2013 to
June 2018, the shares of these companies are listed on GEM operated by
the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Yang has been a practicing barrister-at-law in Hong Kong since June
2005. She has been a member of CPA Australia since September 2003
and a member of the HKICPA since July 2005. She has also been a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
(“ICAEW”) since May 2016 and a member of the Institute of Certified
Public Accountants of Pakistan since May 2017.

Ms. Yang obtained her Bachelor of Commerce, Postgraduate Diploma in
Finance and a Master of Commerce from The University of Melbourne,
Australia, in March 1998, April 1999 and September 2000 respectively,
and a Bachelor of Laws from Monash University, Australia, in March
2003. She also obtained a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the City
University of Hong Kong in July 2004.
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Mr. Wong Son Heng, aged 64, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director on 11 March 2020. Mr. Wong is the chairman
of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, and
the member of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Wong is responsible
for providing independent judgement on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, key appointments and standard of conduct
of our Group.

Mr. Wong has over 34 years of experience in the auditing and accounting
industry. Mr. Wong established and has been a partner at his own audit
firm, Wong & Partners, since May 1994. From March 2008 to February
2014, and since rejoining the firm in October 2014, Mr. Wong has been a
partner at an audit firm, CCH, Wong & Partners. From June 1983 to April
1993, Mr. Wong worked in Hew & Tan (principally engaged in audit and
accounting) and his last designation being audit supervisor.

Mr. Wong was an associate of Chartered Association of Accountants
in May 1991 and has been a fellow of the Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants since May 1996. Mr. Wong has also been a public
accountant of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants since October 1991.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our senior management comprises Mr. F Ling, Mr. W Ling and Mr. Lam
Yin Yam. For biographical details of Mr. F Ling and Mr. W Ling, please
refer to the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” in this section.

Mr. Lam Yin Yam (#Z#R) , aged 34, joined our Group in November
2018 as our group financial controller. He is primarily responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting and budgeting for our Group. Mr. Lam
has over 10 years of experience in the accounting and finance industry.
Prior to joining our Group, he served as the financial controller and the
finance manager of several Hong Kong listed companies from June
2015 to September 2018. From November 2009 to June 2015, Mr. Lam
worked in an international accounting firm in Hong Kong and his last
position was manager in the assurance department.

Mr. Lam has been registered as a certified public accountant of the
Hong Kong Institutes of Certified Public Accountants since March 2013.
Mr. Lam obtained his Bachelor of Business Administration (professional
accountancy) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in December
2009.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Lok Yee (BR%im), ACIS, ACS, was appointed as our
company secretary on 13 November 2018. Ms. Chan has over six years
of experience in the provision of a full range of company secretarial
and compliance services and has held positions in various corporate
secretarial companies in Hong Kong. She has been a manager of
corporate services in Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited since
February 2019, and is currently serving a portfolio of clients, including
public listed companies and private companies.

In October 2011, Ms. Chan awarded her bachelor of arts degree (with
a major in English studies for the professions and a minor in translation)
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. In July 2015, she was
admitted to the degree of Master of Science in Professional Accounting
and Corporate Governance from the City University of Hong Kong. She
was admitted as both an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and an associate member of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom in
September 2015.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The Board of Directors presents this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

SHARE OFFER AND CAPITALISATION ISSUE

The Company was incorporated on 13 June 2018 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law. A total of
200,000,000 Shares with nominal value of HK$0.01 per Share were
issued at HK$0.63 each by way of share offer on 26 March 2020 and on
27 March 2020, the Company’s Shares were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Further, the Company allotted and issued a total of
599,999,800 ordinary shares, credited as fully paid at par, to Flash Dragon
Company Limited and Jupiter Rain Company Limited equally on 27 March
2020 by way of capitalisations of the sum of HK$5,999,998 standing to
the credit of the share premium account of the Company pursuant to the
resolutions of the shareholder passed on 11 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of outsourced
document management services and related software applications
and enterprise software solutions in Malaysia and Singapore. Principal
activities of each of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 1 of the
Notes to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 which includes an analysis of the Group’s performance
using financial key performance indicators and a discussion on the
Group’s likely future business development, events affecting the Company
that have occurred since the end of the financial year and a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are
provided in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” of this

annual report. The review forms part of the Directors’ Report.

RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 78
of this annual report.

The financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019 is set out in

the consolidated statement of financial position on pages 79 and 80 of
this annual report.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information of the Group is set out in Note 29 of the Notes to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

DIVIDEND

A dividend of RM13.00 million was declared to the then shareholders
of the Company on 12 March 2020 and was paid on 14 March 2020.
Investors who became the shareholders of the Company after the Listing
were not entitled to such dividend.

The Board of Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

As far as the Company is aware, as at the date of this annual report, there
has been no arrangement under which any Shareholder has waived, or
agreed to waive, any dividends proposed to be distributed for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on the board meeting dated
22 April 2020 that, in recommending or declaring dividends, the Company
shall maintain adequate and sufficient cash reserves for meeting its
working capital requirements and future growth as well as its Shareholder
value. The Board has the full discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders, and any final dividend for a financial year will be
subject to Shareholders’ approval. In proposing any dividend payout, the
Board shall take into account, among other things, the Group’s financial
results, cash flow situation, business conditions and strategies, expected
future operations and earnings, capital requirements and expenditure
plans, interests of shareholders, any restrictions on payment of dividends
and any other factors the Board may consider relevant. Any payment of
the dividend by the Company is also subject to any restrictions under the
Companies Law and the Articles.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the
2020 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 23 June 2020 to Monday, 29 June 2020 (both dates inclusive),
during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to
qualify for attending and voting at the 2020 AGM, the unregistered
holder of Shares must lodge all transfer documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 22 June 2020.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 12 of the
Notes to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 21 of the Notes to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 81 and in Note 23 of the Notes to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report, respectively. The
Company did not have any distributable reserve as at 31 December
2019.

SHARE AND DEBENTURES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any shares and debentures for the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

A total of 200,000,000 Shares with nominal value of HK$0.01 per Share
were issued on 26 March 2020 at HK$0.63 each by way of Share Offer
(“Share Offer”), raising a total of approximately HK$126 million. The net
proceeds raised by the Company from the Share Offer, after deduction
of the underwriting commissions and other related listing expenses,
amounted to approximately HK$75.8 million. For information on the
use of proceeds of the Share Offer, please refer to the section headed
“Application of Proceeds from the Listing” in the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The members of the Board during the year ended 31 December 2019
and up to the date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Ling Sheng Chung

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ling Sheng Shyan
(appointed on 15 February 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Eugenia Yang

(appointed on 11 March 2020)
Mr. Lee Yan Kit

(appointed on 11 March 2020)
Mr. Wong Son Heng

(appointed on 11 March 2020)

The biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 26 to 31 in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Director has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for an initial term of three years with effect from the Listing
Date and shall be terminable by either party by giving not less than one
month’s notice in writing to the other or payment of wages in lieu of
notice.
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The Non-Executive Director has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company for an initial term of three years with effect from the Listing Date
and shall be terminable by either party by giving three months’ notice in
writing to the other or payment in lieu of notice.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years with effect
from the Listing Date and shall be terminable by either party by giving one
month’s notice in writing to the other or payment in lieu of notice.

The above appointments are always subject to the provisions of
retirement and rotation of directors under the Articles of Association.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service agreement which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory obligations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Related Party Transactions
and Continuing Connected Transactions” in this Directors’ Report and
in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements, no transactions,
arrangement and contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director (or any entity
connected with a Director) had a material interest, whether directly and
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Related Party Transactions
and Continuing Connected Transactions” in this Directors’ Report
and in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements, no contracts
of significance (including contracts of significance for the provision of
services) between Company (or any of its subsidiaries) and any Controlling
Shareholder of the Company (or any of its subsidiaries) subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered into certain
transactions with related parties as defined in accordance with applicable
accounting standards, and details of which are set out in Note 23 of the
Notes to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report. Such
related party transactions include the continuing connected transactions
(fully exempted pursuant to Chapter 14A of Listing Rules). The Company
confirms that it has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the businesses of the Company were entered into or existed.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY OR ANY OF ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As the Company was not listed on the Stock Exchange as at 31
December 2019, Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO and section 352
of the SFO were not applicable to the Directors or chief executive of the
Company as at 31 December 2019.
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As at the date of this annual report, the interests and short positions of
the Directors or the chief executives of the Company in any of the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), (i) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or (i) which were required, as
recorded in the register, to be maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or (jii) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as
follows:

RAFHAY EFHARARHTERAEBRAE
NEHEABEE (EERBHF LB RPIEXV
#B) eV ERIA D - FRRIR D KB MERE P R (VIR
xR EIRPIEXVERET R8N BAME AR
B M B A P E MO R (NAR BN AR A
R E 7 N B 6 0] 553521647 B &9 & "o i A9 42
@ MORA - iR BARE T RIZB A E AR R KB
Rt FORB AT

Approximate

Number of percentage
ordinary Shares of shareholding
Name of Director Capacity/nature of interests held/interested® interest®
BEBEEREN REBL
EEpg B REEHE ZRREA" BoE®
Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang® Interest in controlled corporation 300,000,000 37.5%
Ling Sheng Hwang?t 4@ R EE R
Mr. Ling Sheng Chung® Interest in controlled corporation 300,000,000 37.5%
Ling Sheng Chung#t 4@ REEEER
Notes: et :
(1) All the above Shares are held in long position. (1) N EFTERNH NG ERSE -

2) Flash Dragon Company Limited, wholly-owned by Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang,
held 300,000,000 Shares. Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang is deemed to be
interested in 300,000,000 Shares pursuant to the SFO.

) Jupiter Rain Company Limited, wholly-owned by Mr. Ling Sheng Chung,
held 300,000,000 Shares. Mr. Ling Sheng Chung is deemed to be interested
in the 300,000,000 Shares pursuant to the SFO.

(4) The calculation is based on the total number of 800,000,000 Shares in issue
as at the date of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As the Company was not listed on the Stock Exchange as at 31
December 2019, Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and section 352
of the SFO were not applicable to the substantial shareholders and other
persons of the Company as at 31 December 2019.

As at the date of this annual report, so far as was known to the Directors,
the following persons (not being the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) had, or deemed to have, interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which would be recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

FRERRRER RAEER G HER
FRRE

BRAA B F2019F12 831 H & R B 2 BT £
o MEES R EENEXVERE2R3D E LA R 7
# K EAE 0123521874 2019F 12 A31 B W 1 i
RARARREERRREMA L
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AREBREBITHA ) RAR AR S48
BRAR15 o HE 5 AR R 45 B A ) SE XV 2
35 B0 (AR A R FE B B s AR A
DEIRIEE S R E I FO365 T BB
BB TAR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number of
ordinary Shares

Name Capacity/Nature of interests held/interest" interest®
BE BREREN REBN

BE LR B REME ZEREE BaLO

Flash Dragon Company Limited® Beneficial interest 300,000,000 37.5%

Flash Dragon Company Limited® BEmiEm

Ms. Chua Siew Chen® Interest of spouse 300,000,000 37.5%

Chua Siew ChenZz £© [N

Jupiter Rain Company Limited® Beneficial interest 300,000,000 37.5%

Jupiter Rain Company Limited® Bl

Ms. Seo Chee Teng® Interest of spouse 300,000,000 37.5%

Seo Chee TengZ £© [ c

Notes: B3

(1) Al the above Shares are held in long position. (1) AEFBBRMDELTERS-

) Flash Dragon Company Limited, wholly-owned by Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang,
held 300,000,000 Shares.

2 Flash Dragon Company Limited ( iLing Sheng
Hwang st 4 2 & ¥ A ) #55300,000,000 A {3 ©
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Q) Ms. Chua Siew Chen, the spouse of Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang, is deemed to
be interested in the 300,000,000 Shares held by Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang,
through his controlled corporation, Flash Dragon Company Limited, pursuant
to the SFO.

4) Jupiter Rain Company Limited, wholly-owned by Mr. Ling Sheng Chung,
held 300,000,000 Shares.

5) Ms. Seo Chee Teng, the spouse of Mr. Ling Sheng Chung, is deemed to
be interested in the 300,000,000 Shares held by Mr. Ling Sheng Chung,
through his controlled corporation, Jupiter Rain Company Limited, pursuant
to the SFO.

6) The calculation is based on the total number of 800,000,000 shares in issue
as at the date of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report, no
person, other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company
whose interests are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company or any of its Associated Corporations”
above had any interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 11
March 2020. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to Eligible Participants (as defined in
the paragraph below) as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Group.

Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Board is entitled at any
time within the period of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme to make an offer to the below eligible participants (the
“Eligible Participants”) of the Share Option Scheme:

(i) any full-time or part-time Employees, or potential employees,
executives or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any Directors (including Executive, Non-Executive and Independent
Non-Executive Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
and

(i) any suppliers, customers, agents and advisers who, in the sole

opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to our
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.
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The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the Listing Date, being
80,000,000 Shares. Subject to Shareholders’ approval in general meeting,
the Board may:

(i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of the approval by the Shareholders in general meeting; and/or

(i) grant options beyond the 10% limit to Eligible Participants specially
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting and the Eligible
Participants are specifically identified by the Company before such
approval is sought.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each Eligible Participant (including both exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue. Any further grant
of options to an Eligible Participant in excess of the 1% limit shall be
subject to approval by Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible
Participant and his or her close associates (or his or her associates if such
Eligible Participant is a connected person) abstaining from voting.

Each of the grantees to whom an option has been granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall be entitled to exercise his/her option in the
manner set out in his/her offer document, provided that such period of
time shall not exceed a period of ten years commencing on the date on
which the option is granted. The exercise of any option shall be subject to
the Shareholders in general meeting approving any necessary increase in
the authorised share capital of the Company.

Upon acceptance of an option to subscribe for Shares granted pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme (the “Option”), the Eligible Participant shall
pay HK$1.00 to the Company as consideration for the grant on or before
the relevant acceptance date. The subscription price for the Shares under
the Share Option Scheme shall, subject to the adjustments referred to
in the Share Option Scheme, be a price determined by the Board (or its
committee) at its sole discretion and notified to the Participant and shall
be no less than the highest of:
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(@) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for business
of dealing in securities;

(o) the average of the official closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days (as defined in the Listing Rules) immediately
preceding the date of grant; or

(c)  the nominal value of a Share.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled and lapsed
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme since its adoption and there was
no share option scheme available as at 31 December 2019.

For more information on the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the
section headed “Statutory and General Information — F. Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix V to the Prospectus.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, no equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the
date of this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is
registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules.

As required by the Malaysian law, the Group also makes contributions
to the state pension scheme for all qualifying employees in Malaysia, the
Employees Provident Fund (the “EPF”), a social security institution formed
according to the Employees Provident Fund Act 1991 which provides
for the retirement benefits for all local employees. Both the employer
and employee are required to make contributions into the employee’s
individual account in the EPF at a specified percentage of the employee’s
monthly income. No forfeited contribution under this scheme is available
to reduce the contribution payable in future years.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE
COMPANY’S SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2019 and at the end of
the financial year was the Company, or any of its holding companies or
subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors or chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to have any
right to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debenture of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The emoluments of the Directors were decided by the Board as
recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard to the
Group’s operating results, the individual performance of the Directors
and the comparable market statistics. The Directors’ fees are in line with
market practice. No individual Director should determine his/her own
remuneration.

Emolument package includes, as the case may be, fees, basic salaries,
housing allowances, contribution to pension schemes, discretionary
bonus relating to the financial results of the Group and individual
performance, ad hoc rewards, share options and other competitive fringe
benefits such as medical and life insurances. Details of the emoluments
of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are
set out in Note 9 and Note 10 of the Notes to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the period from the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, none of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged
in or had any interest in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to avoid potential conflicts of interests with our Company, our
Controlling Shareholders, namely Mr. F Ling, Mr. W Ling, Flash Dragon
Company Limited and Jupiter Rain Company Limited, had entered into a
Deed of non-competition in favour of our Company (for itself and for the
benefits of each other member of our Group) on 11 March 2020, pursuant
to which they have undertaken, among others, not to compete with the
business of the Group.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the status
of compliance and written confirmation from each of the Controlling
Shareholders, and are of the view that all the undertakings under the
Deed have been complied with since the Listing Date and up to the date
of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices, pursuant to the Articles. Such
provisions were in force throughout the year ended 31 December 2019
and are currently in force. The Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions that may
be brought against the Directors.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the
Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of purchasing,
holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any rights in relation to
the Shares, they are advised to consult their professional advisers.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

As we were not yet listed on the Stock Exchange for the year ended 31
December 2019, this disclosure requirement is not applicable to us for
the year ended 31 December 2019. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman lIslands, although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, sales to the Group’s largest
customer accounted for approximately 16.4% of the total revenue and the
aggregate sales to its five largest customers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 45.4% of the total revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, purchases from the Group’s
largest supplier accounted for approximately 71.7% of the total purchase
cost and the aggregate purchases from its five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 89.6% of the total purchase cost.

Save as the shareholding interest held in Compugraphic Forms Sdn.
Bhd., to the best knowledge of the Directors, none of our Directors, any of
their close associates or any Shareholders (which to the knowledge of our
Directors, own more than 5% of the issued Share capital of our Company)
had any interest in any of our five largest suppliers and customers.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group and its business are governed by certain laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group which are stated in the
section headed “Regulatory Overview” of the Prospectus. To the best of
the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, during the year ended
31 December 2019, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group. The Company has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. The
following are some of the primary laws and regulations applicable to the
Group in Malaysia:

Risk Management in Technology Policy

In accordance with the policy document issued by Bank Negara Malaysia
on Risk Management in Technology which became effective on 1 January
2020 (the “BMIT”), the Group requires its computer servers to be housed
in a data centre with access to a stable supply of electricity and internet
connectivity that meets the requirements of its financial customers
and Bank Negara Malaysia. The RMIT, which sets out Bank Negara
Malaysia’s expectations regarding the technology and risk management
framework and practice of financial institutions, states that production
data centres and recovery data centres used by financial institutions must
be concurrently maintainable which shall be similar or equivalent to the
international standards of Tier 3 requirements.

To ensure that the Group’s services to financial institution customers
will not be interrupted during the construction of its new data centre
(as disclosed in the Prospectus) and regardless of the length of any
transitional period that may be granted by Bank Negara Malaysia to
respective financial institution customers for compliance with the RMIT
requirements, the Group has discussed and agreed with most of its
financial institution customers that the Group will be allowed, for a period
of no more than 24 months starting from 1 January 2020, to temporarily
lease rack space from a third-party Tier 3 data centre as an one-off
transitional arrangement.
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Laws and Regulations relating to Intellectual
Property

The Group uses various intellectual property rights such as software
copyrights in its daily business. During the year of 2019, the Group
complied with all Malaysian laws and regulations relating to intellectual
property, including the Copyright Act 1987 and the Trademarks Act 2019.
The Group was not subject to, or a party to, any intellectual property
rights infringement claims or litigation.

Laws and Regulations relating to Employment

During the year of 2019, the Group complied with all Malaysian laws
and regulations relating to employment, including the Employment Act
1955, the Employment (Restriction) Act 1968, the Employees Provident
Fund Act 1991, the Employees’ Social Security Act 1969, the Minimum
Wages Order (Amendment) 2018 and Minimum Wages Order 2020, the
Industrial Relations Act 1967 and the Occupational Safety and Health
Act 1994. The Group registered its staff for social insurance and made
all relevant contributions. It did not receive any penalty from the relevant
administrative departments and did not experience any material disputes
with, or claims by, any of its employees.

Laws and Regulations relating to Taxation

During the year of 2019, the Group complied with all Malaysian laws
and regulations relating to taxation, including the Income Tax Act 1967,
Income Tax (Deduction from Remuneration) Rules 1994, Promotion of
Investments Act 1986, Goods and Services Tax 2014 and Service Tax
Act 2018. With a view to strengthening its staff’'s understanding of tax
regulations applicable in Malaysia, the Group has strengthened its finance
department with more staff with accounting and tax expertise to handle
matters in relation to goods and services tax, and its staff is required to
seek advice from the Royal Malaysian Customs Department, other tax
authorities and/or tax consultant whenever there are new tax laws or
regulations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is not subject to any specific environmental laws and
regulations set by the Malaysian Government with respect to the Group’s
operation. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group’s operations do
not have any material adverse impact on the environment, however, the
Group, as an outsourced service provider, is required to use a substantial
amount of paper for the printing of documents such as leaflets, letters,
envelopes and documentation for our customers, which are sent to
clients of our customers for, among other things, marketing purposes
and record keeping. As part of the Group’s commitment to environmental
sustainability, the Group strives to market our digital solutions to
customers and adopt other sustainable printing options such as use of
recycled paper instead of virgin paper, use of energy efficient equipment
and double-sided printing. On the other hand, the Directors believe that
the Group’s software, if accepted and implemented by customers, will
have a result in the reduction in the use of paper given that we enable
many of the outsourced services to be digitised.

Whilst the Group does not directly produce pollutants that directly affect
the environment, we have implemented internal policies to reduce the
Group’s carbon footprint such as reducing the energy consumption
through:

(@ Installing energy efficient lighting and ensuring lights are switched off
when out of use either manually or through automatic sensors;

(b)  Switching off equipment or using automatic power shutdown
systems; and

(c)  Air cooling (actions include but are not limited to: regular
maintenance of air cooling technologies and optimal timing
controls).

The “Environmental Social and Governance Report” of the Company to

be prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules will be
published within three months after the publication of this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good relationships
with its employees, suppliers, customers and other stakeholders to meet
its immediate and long-term goals.

Employees: The Group remunerates its employees with wages, bonuses
and other staff benefits. The Group offers on the job training, as well
as encourages staff development by providing financial subsidies to
selected high potential employees for external training or courses. For the
employees of the Group, we have registered our staff for social insurance
and have made relevant contributions in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations.

Suppliers: The Group’s material suppliers mainly supply paper products
such as paper and envelopes, and printing consumables. The Group also
sources services suppliers for its posting needs and certain printing needs
which cannot be completed in-house. The Group does not enter into any
long-term supply agreements with any suppliers or service providers and
will purchase or engage them on an as required basis.

Customers: The Group’s customers are companies from the banking,
insurance and retail industries which deal with a large volume of end-
customers on a daily basis. The Group'’s stable business is based on its
long-term relationship with its major customers and providing them with
outsourced document management services and enterprise software
solutions. As the Group possesses the technical capability, flexibility of
customising its software to meet its customers’ specific needs and ability
to provide accurate and efficient processing, the Group believes that
this has led a majority of its customers to return and continue using its
services by renewing the service contracts when they expire. As such, the
Group engages in regular discussions with its customers to understand
their potential needs so as to develop and customise potential software
solutions for them.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its employees, suppliers,
customers and/or stakeholders.
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

As we were not yet listed on the Stock Exchange for the year ended 31
December 2019, the CG Code was not applicable to us during such
period under review. After the Listing, we have complied with all applicable
Code Provisions set forth in the Corporate Governance Code, except for
the following deviation from the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.
For further information on the Company’s corporate governance practices
and details of the deviations, please refer to the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 52 to 68 of this annual report.

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. F Ling holds both positions. Mr. F Ling has
been primarily responsible for corporate strategic planning and overall
business development of our Group since he founded our Group in
the 2000s. Taking into account the continuation of management and
the implementation of our business strategies, Directors (including
Independent Non-Executive Directors) consider it is most suitable for Mr. F
Ling to hold both the positions of the chief executive officer and chairman
of the Board and the existing arrangements are beneficial and in the
interests of our Company and our Shareholders as a whole.

The Board will continue to review and consider splitting the roles of
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company at
a time when it is appropriate by taking into account the circumstances of
the Group as a whole.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual report,
there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules at all times from the
Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the audited consolidated results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last four financial years is set out on page 168 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 have been audited by Ermnst & Young PLT who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young PLT as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the 2020 AGM.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of event after the Reporting Period are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 11 March 2020, the Company’s shareholders approved the increase
of authorised share capital of the Company from HK380,000 divided in
to 38,000,000 shares of a par value of HK0.01 each to HK15,000,000
divided into 1,500,000,000 shares of a par value of HK$0.01 each by the
creation of an additional 1,462,000,000 shares of a par value of HK$0.01
each.

Subsequent to the Reporting Period, on 12 March 2020, the Company
declared a dividend amounting to RM13 million in total to its shareholders,
all of which has been paid prior to the Listing of the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange on 14 March 2020.

On 27 March 2020, the Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.

CHANGES TO DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors confirm that no information is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

Ling Sheng Hwang
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 April 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERBME

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the corporate government
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to the
Shareholders and protecting and enhancing Shareholder value through
good corporate governance. The Company has developed and
implemented sound corporate governance policies and measures, and
the Board is responsible for performing such corporate governance
duties. The Board will continue to review and monitor the corporate
governance of the Company with reference to the CG Code so as to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance of the Company.

The CG Code has been applicable to the Company with effect from
the Listing Date and was not applicable to the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2019. The Company has complied with all
applicable Code Provisions as set out in the CG Code from the Listing
Date up to the date of this annual report, except the deviation from Code
Provision A.2.1.

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman of
the Board and the chief executive should be segregated and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. F Ling holds both positions. Mr.
F Ling has been primarily responsible for corporate strategic planning and
overall business development of our Group since he founded our Group
in the 2000s. Taking into account the continuation of management and
the implementation of our business strategies, our Directors (including
our Independent Non-Executive Directors) consider it is the most suitable
for Mr. F Ling to hold both the positions of the chief executive officer and
chairman of the Board and the existing arrangements are beneficial and in
the interests of our Company and our Shareholders as a whole.

The Board will continue to review and consider splitting the roles of
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company at
a time when it is appropriate by taking into account the circumstances of
the Group as a whole.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct for
securities transactions by the Directors.

As the Company was not listed on the Stock Exchange as of 31
December 2019, related rules under the Listing Rules concerning
the Model Code that the Directors shall observe did not apply to the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019. Following specific
enquires with all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code from
the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should include
a balanced composition of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Director
and Independent Non-Executive Directors so that the Board has a
strong independent element, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement. Currently, the Board comprises six Directors, including two
Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Director and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors. Details of their composition by category are as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ling Sheng Chung

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Ling Sheng Shyan

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Eugenia Yang
Mr. Lee Yan Kit
Mr. Wong Son Heng

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report. Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors, none of
the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship) with any other Directors or
any chief executive.
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Responsibilities

The Board is the primary decision making body of the Company. The
Board and Management are charged with promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors, including
Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Board would regularly review the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company and whether
he/she has sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs. The
Board has general powers for the management and conduct of the
Company’s business, in particularly, decision in all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant operational matters of the Company. The day-to-
day operations and management are delegated by the Board to the
management of the Company, who will implement the strategy and
direction as determined by the Board.

Directors’ and Officers Liabilities Insurance

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be brought against the
Directors.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas Code Provision A.4.2 states that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall be subject to election by Shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment and that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.
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Each of the Directors is appointed under a service agreement for a term
of three years. For more details, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Directors’ Service Contracts” in the Directors’ report.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
for the time being, or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and shall be eligible for re-election. Any
additional Directors appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

Accordingly, Mr. F Ling, Mr. W Ling and Mr. S Ling will retire from office
and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the 2020
AGM.

Directors’ Induction and Continuing Professional
Development

All Directors confirmed that they had complied with Code Provision A.6.5
of the Code during the year and up to the date of this annual report, that
all Directors had participated in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has
arranged an in-house training on the Listing Rules in the form of a seminar
during the year conducted by the Legal Advisor of the Company and
relevant training material has been distributed to all the Directors. All
Directors had attended the in-house training. The training covered topics
which include, directors’ duties, the disclosure obligations under laws of
Hong Kong and other applicable laws, the requirements of disclosable
transactions and connected transactions etc. under the Listing Rules.

Meetings of Board, Committees Meetings and
General Meetings

Code Provision A.1.1 of the CG Code stipulates that board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of the majority of the Directors, either in
person or through electronic means of communication.

The Company had not been listed on the Stock Exchange as at 31
December 2019 and was only listed on 27 March 2020. Since the Listing
Date and up to the date of this annual report, there was one Board
meeting held, at which the Directors approved, among other things, the
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Number of meeting(s) attended/number of meeting(s) held since the
Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report is set out in the below
table:

TREFE LT AREEEAFHRARIHAEH
FOGHRE/ BITNERREC

General Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Name of Director meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
EEnE BRRAE Exg ERZEE ¥FMEEE REZES
Executive Directors: BITES:
Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang Ling Sheng Hwang#t £ N/A T A 11 N/A 7~ A N/A i A 11
Mr. Ling Sheng Chung Ling Sheng Chung’t &  N/A A 11 N/A 38 F N/A 7~ iE F 11
Non-Executive Director: FHTES:
Mr. Ling Sheng Shyan Ling Sheng Shyan’t & N/A i A 1/1 11 N/A i A N/A i F
Independent Non-Executive BYFHITES:

Directors:

Ms. Eugenia Yang R N/A 78 F 11 11 N/A 7~ E F 11
Mr. Lee Yan Kit TR N/A &R 1/1 1/1 N/A 13 1/1
Mr. Wong Son Heng Wong Son Heng4t 4 N/A 138 11 11 N/A T3 F 11
Independence of Independent Non-Executive BYHTEENBE LM

Directors

Throughout the period commencing from the Listing Date through to the
date of this annual report, the Company has three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, which at all times meets the requirement of the
Listing Rules that the number of Independent Non-Executive Directors
must represent at least one-third of the Board and should not be less than
three, and that at least one of the independent Non-Executive Directors
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence in writing pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Board is satisfied that all the independent non-
executive Directors have been independent and met the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules since the Listing Date
and up to the date of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established three board committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
Each of the Board committees operates under defined written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit committee

We have established our Audit Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on
11 March 2020. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly
to assist our Board in providing an independent view of the effectiveness
of our financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
system, overseeing the audit process and performing other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by our Board.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Son Heng, Mr. Lee Yan Kit and Ms. Eugenia
Yang, and the non-executive Director, Mr S Ling. Mr. Wong Son Heng is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

As the Company was listed on 27 March 2020, no Audit Committee
meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Since the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
annual report, one Audit Committee meeting was held at which the Audit
Committee (i) reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019; and (i) reviewed the
internal control and risk management system of the Group.

The Audit Committee also had a meeting with Emst & Young PLT, the
Independent auditor of the Company.

Remuneration committee

We established our Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the
CG Code on 11 March 2020. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are mainly to evaluate the performance of our Directors and
senior management and determine the remuneration package of our
Directors and members of our senior management.
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The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Son Heng, Mr. Lee Yan Kit and
Ms. Eugenia Yang and two Executive Directors, namely Mr. F Ling and
Mr. W Ling. Mr Wong Son Heng is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

As the Company was listed on 27 March 2020, no Remuneration
Committee meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Since the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
annual report, no Remuneration Committee meeting was held.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management for
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 10 of the Notes to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

The annual remuneration of the senior management of the Group by band
for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

Remuneration of the Senior Management (including two Executive
Directors) by bands

TMEEeh =2 BLIEHTES (BWong
Son Heng%t & ~ =G E KRG L& L) MW
ZHITES (BIF LingZt & R W LingZt 4 ) 48R °
Wong Son Hengst &£ BRIEEHMEE S E/F -
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Number of
senior
management
B
EEEAH

Nil — HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000

Save as disclosed in this annual report, (i) no remuneration was paid to
our Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join,
or upon joining, our Group; (i) no compensation was paid to, or receivable
by, our Directors or past Directors or the five highest paid individuals
during the year ended 31 December 2019 for the loss of office as director
of any member of our Group or of any other office in connection with the
management of the affairs of any member of our Group; and (i) none of
our Directors waived any emoluments during the same period.
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Further to the above, no Director or none of the five highest paid
individuals has been paid in cash or shares or otherwise by any person
either to induce him to become, or to qualify him as a Director, or
otherwise for service rendered by him in connection with the promotion or
formation of us save as disclosed in this annual report.

Nomination committee

We have established our Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code on 11 March 2020.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to make
recommendations to our Board on the appointment of our Directors and
members of our senior management.

Our Nomination Committee consists of three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Son Heng, Mr. Lee Yan Kit and Ms. Eugenia
Yang and two Executive Directors, namely Mr. F Ling and Mr. W Ling. Mr.
F Ling is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

As the Company was listed on 27 March 2020, no Nomination
Committee meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Since the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
annual report, one Nomination Committee meeting was held to review the
Board composition and make recommendation to the Board for Directors
to be re-elected in the 2020 AGM.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
which aims to:

o set out the criteria and process in the nomination and appointment
of Directors;

. ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company; and

o ensure the Board’s continuity and appropriate leadership at Board
level.

Criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:

o character, reputation and integrity;

° qualifications, experience and accomplishments, including
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are
relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy;

o willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a Board
member and other directorships and significant commitments;

o requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates
would be considered independent by reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;
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o Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives adopted by
the Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the Board;

. any other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s
business and succession plan and where applicable, may be
adopted and/or amended by the Board and/or the Nomination
Committee from time to time for nomination of Directors and
succession planning; and

o such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business.

Nomination Procedures
(A) Appointment of New Director

(i) The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the
proposal on appointment of the new Director, the
biographical information (or relevant details) of such
candidate and evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out in above paragraph of “Criteria” to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.

(i)  The Nomination Committee may request candidates to
provide additional information and documents, if considered
necessary.

(i) If the process vyields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee shall rank them by order of preference
based on the needs of the Company (including but not limited
to ensuring that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives) and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

(iv)  The Nomination Committee shall then recommend
appointment of the appropriate candidate for directorship
and the candidate shall provide his/her written consent (a) to
be appointed as a Director, and (b) to the public disclosure
of his/her personal data on any documents or the relevant
websites for the purpose of or in relation to his/her standing
for election as a Director.
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62

For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the Company,
the Nomination Committee shall evaluate such candidate
based on the above paragraph of “Criteria” to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship and
where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board shall make recommendation to the Shareholders in
respect of the proposed election of Director at the general
meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating
to its recommendation of candidates to stand for election at
any general meeting.

Re-Election of Director at General Meeting

(i)

Retiring Directors are eligible for nomination by the Board to
stand for re-election at a general meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee shall review the retiring Director’s
overall contribution and service to the Company, including
his/her attendance of Board mestings and, where applicable,
general meetings, and his/her level of participation and
performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall also review and determine
whether the retiring Director continues to meet the criteria as
set out in above paragraph.

the Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then
make recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of the Director at the general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating

to its recommendation of candidates to stand for re-election
at any general meeting.
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Regular Review

The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review on:

(i) the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy to ensure that it remains
relevant to the Company’s needs and reflects both current
regulatory requirements and good corporate governance practice;
and

(i) the structure, size and composition of the Board and where
appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and business
needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out the Code
Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and written employee
guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this corporate governance report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young PLT is appointed as the external auditor of the Company.
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the fees paid to Ernst & Young
PLT for the audit of the annual financial statements of the Group are
RM200,000 (excluding the expenses on the audit and non-audit service
provided by Ernst & Young related to the Share Offer of the Company).

The fees charged by Ernst & Young PLT in respect of the non-auditing
services for the year are approximately RM411,000.
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DIRECTORS’ ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow during the
reporting period. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis. There
are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. A statement from the external auditors about its reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out on
pages 74 to 76 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal
control and risk management systems in order to safeguard the Group’s
assets and Shareholders’ interests and reviewing the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control and risk management systems on an annual
basis so as to ensure that internal control and risk management systems
in place are adequate. The Company outsourced its internal audit function
to an external consultant who reports directly to the Board. The internal
audit function primarily carries out the analysis and independent appraisal
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the issuer’s risk management and
internal control systems, and reports their findings to the Board on, at
least, an annual basis.

The Group’s internal control system includes a well-established
organizational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and
authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are entrusted to
individual department which is accountable for its own conduct and
performance and is required to operate its own department’s business
within the scope of the delegated authority and to implement and strictly
adhere to the strategies and policies set by the Company from time to
time. Each department is also required to keep the Board informed of
material developments of the department’s business and implementation
of the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular basis.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group to ensure that a sound system is maintained and operated by the
management in compliance with the agreed procedures and standards.
The review covered all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions. In particular,
the Board considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions. The review was made by
discussions with the management of the Company and the assessment
conducted by the Audit Committee. The Board believes that the existing
internal control system is adequate and effective, in particular, for financial
reporting and Listing Rules compliance.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company takes seriously of
its obligations under Part XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules. The
Company has adopted a Continuous Disclosure Compliance Policy which
sets out guidelines and procedures to the Directors and officers of the
Group to ensure inside information of the Group is to be disseminated to
the public in an equal and timely manner. Briefing session is held regularly
for officers to facilitate their understanding and compliance with the policy.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures are followed. The company secretary
of the Company is Ms. Chan Lok Yee. Ms. Chan has over six years
of experience in the provision of a full range of company secretarial
and compliance services and has held positions in various corporate
secretarial companies in Hong Kong. She has been a manager of
corporate services in Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited since
February 2019, and is currently serving a portfolio of clients, including
public listed companies and private companies. In compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Chan Lok Yee has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2019. Ms. Chan’s primary contact with the Company is Mr.
Lam Yin Yam, the Group financial controller.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

The Company’s annual general meeting remains the principal forum for
dialogue with the Shareholders. The Shareholders are encouraged to
participate in the proceedings and ask questions about the resolutions
being proposed and the operations of the Group. The Articles allows a
Shareholder entitled to attend and vote to appoint more than one proxy
to attend and vote on behalf of the Shareholder and also provides that a
proxy need not be a Shareholder of the Company.

Code Provision E.1.3 of the CG Code stipulates that the issuer should
arrange for the notice to Shareholders to be sent in the case of the annual
general meeting at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and
in the case of all other general meetings at least 10 clear business days
before the meeting. The Company has been in compliance with such
Code Provision.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholder meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each Shareholder
meeting.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, the Board may, whenever it thinks fit,
convene an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings
shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board
or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company. The said written requisitions can be addressed to
the Board or the Company Secretary by mail to Room 1901, 19/F, Lee
Garden One, 33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Cay, Hong Kong.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETING

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2016
Revision). However, Shareholders who wish to propose resolutions may
follow article 64 of the Articles for requisitioning an extraordinary general
meeting and including a resolution at such meeting. The requirements and
procedures of article 64 are set out above. As regards proposing a person
for election as a director, the procedures are available on the website of
the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD AND CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for publicly
available information and provide comments and suggestions to
directors or management of the Company. Such questions, requests and
comments can be addressed to the Company by mail to Room 1901,
19/F, Lee Garden One, 33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong or
by email to investor_relations@cgroup.com.my.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings by
mail to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong or by telephone at (852)
2862 8555, who has been appointed by the Company to deal with
Shareholders for share registration and related matters.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

Company believes that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Company’s business performance and strategies. The Company
also recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enables Shareholders to make the most
informed investment decisions. The goal of our communication activities is
to provide a true and fair view of the Company.
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As such, the Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy and a range of communication channels between itself and its
Shareholders, investors and other stakeholders. These include (i) the
publication of interim and annual reports and/or dispatching circulars,
notices, and other announcements; (i) the annual general meeting and/or
extraordinary general meeting providing a forum for Shareholders to raise
comments and exchanging views with the Board; (i) updated and key
information of the Group available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company; (iv) the Company’s website offering communication
channel between the Company and its stakeholders; and (v) the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong serving the Shareholders
in respect of all share registration matters.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the period from the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, there has not been any change in the constitutional documents of
the Company.

The amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association

of the Company are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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Building a better
working world

Independent auditors’ report to the members of
C-Link Squared Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands)

Report on the audit of the financial statements

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements (the “financial
statements”) of C-Link Squared Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2019 of the Group and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows of the Group for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set
out on pages 78 to 167.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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INDEPENDENCE AND OTHER ETHICAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the By-Laws (on
Professional Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute
of Accountants (“‘By-Laws”) and the International Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) (IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
Group for the current financial year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors’
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis of our audit
opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

(1) Impairment assessment of intangible assets

(Refer to Note 3.2(b) — Key sources of estimation uncertainty
and Note 14 - Intangible assets)

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of intangible
assets of the Group amounted to RM3.4 million, representing
21% and 5% of the Group’s total non-current assets and total
assets respectively. The Group is required to perform impairment
assessment for intangible assets with finite useful lives whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired
and perform impairment assessment annually for intangible assets
not yet available for use, or more frequently if the events and
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
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The Group estimated the recoverable amounts of the intangible
assets based on value in use (“VIU"). Estimating the VIU involves
discounting the estimated future cash inflows and outflows
expected to be derived from the intangible asset to its present value
using an appropriate discount rate.

We identified this as an area of audit focus as the VIU determined
using discounted cash flows is complex and involves significant
management judgement and estimates, specifically the key
assumptions on the gross profit margin, long-term growth rate and
discount rate.

Our audit response:

In addressing this area of audit focus, we performed, amongst
others, the following procedures:

a) we obtained an understanding of the methodology adopted
by the management in estimating the VIU and assessed
whether such methodology is consistent with those used in
the industry;

b) we obtained an understanding from management on their
basis of assigning probability to the potential contracts
included in the VIU by reference to the stage of negotiation
with customers;

C) we evaluated management’'s key assumptions on gross
profit margin and long-term growth rate, by taking into
consideration the current and expected future economic
conditions of the industry;

d) we assessed whether the discount rate used reflects the
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset is the return that investors
would require if they were to choose an investment that
would generate cash flows of amounts, timing and risk profile
equivalent to those that the entity expects to derive from the
intangible asset;

e) we performed sensitivity analysis on key assumptions that will
significantly affect the recoverable amounts of the intangible
asset; and

f) we evaluated the adequacy of disclosures of key
assumptions to which the outcome of the impairment
assessment is most sensitive.
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(2) Capitalisation of software development

72

expenditure

(Refer to Note 3.2(d) — Key sources of estimation uncertainty
and Note 14 - Intangible assets)

During the current financial year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group capitalised software development expenditure of RM1.3
million as part of its intangible assets.

Capitalisation of internally developed assets requires management’s
judgement to evaluate whether the expenditure incurred qualifies for
recognition as an asset in accordance with IAS 38 Intangible Assets
and with the Group’s accounting policies. The Group distinguishes
between research costs, which are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income as incurred, and development costs, which
are capitalised by the Group provided that the technical feasibility
of the project has been established, it can reasonably be expected
that its costs will be recovered in future periods and the costs can
be measured reliably.

We identified this as an area of audit focus due to the significance of
the expenditure capitalised and the judgement required to be made
by management.

Our audit response:

In addressing this area of audit focus, we performed, amongst
others, the following procedures:

a) We evaluated accounting policies of the Group on criteria for
capitalisation for compliance with IFRS;

b) we assessed the management’s controls over the recording
and capitalisation of software development expenditure;
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) we evaluated management’s judgement made in determining
whether the costs incurred qualify as development costs, by:

. reviewing the development plan and technical
specification of the asset under development and
business plans of the Group and evaluating whether
they reflect the use of the asset for the Group and the
Group’s technical feasibility and intention to complete
the development; and

. evaluating the reasonableness of the business plans
provided by assessing the existence of a market
and whether economic benefits are expected to be
generated in the future; and

d) we assessed the reasonableness of the staff costs
capitalised, by:

o assessing the complexity and feature of the asset
under development by reviewing its technical
specification and evaluating reasonableness of
estimated total hours required to develop the asset;

° agreeing the development team’s hours incurred to
time charge records and payroll records; and

° corroborating the complexity of the asset and hours
incurred through interviews with key development team
members.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and our
auditors’ report thereon.

QOur opinion on the financial statements of the Group does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements of the Group or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The directors are also responsible for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate
the Group to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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18 M B BT ]

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the Group for the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.
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OTHER MATTERS Hit==18

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, AHEER BEAFRE ((EAZE)LE  FlE
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other ~ HAt B &) EZM AR AR EN AR AT HAb
person for the content of this report. ANTHEEEREE-

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent HEARBUZHMMBENBZEEARAR

auditor’s report is HOH, Yoon Hoong. HOH, Yoon Hoong °

Ernst & Young PLT Ernst & Young PLT

202006000008 (LLP0022760-LCA) & AF 0039 2020060000083 (LLP0022760-LCA) & AF 0039
Chartered Accountants FEFEETAD

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

22 April 2020 2020%F4 H22H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEEHEWER

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

1.1.2019 to 1.1.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
20194 20184
1818 & 1A1EE
20194 2018%F
12A31H 12H31H
Group Note RM’000 RM’000
RE Bt <5 FLER
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFFEIV AN E 4 71,526 67,095
Cost of sales $HE AN (41,904) (40,362)
Gross profit ER 29,622 26,733
Other income Ha g A 5 566 241
Administrative expenses TEFAX (10,258) (9,949
Finance costs L= DN 6 (915) 410)
Profit before tax R B4 A= R 7 19,015 16,615
Income tax expense FIB MM 11 (5,962) (4,835)
Profit net of tax representing total BRE#ER BEFREZE
comprehensive income for the year Wi 48 2R 13,053 11,780
Profit attributable to owners of the parent &2 %A A FE{LEFR 13,053 11,780
Earnings per share attributable to the owners QAR AE AEEERZEF)
of the parent:
- Basic and diluted (RM sen) —ERREE (HFD) 8 2.18 1.96

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an

integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

As at 31 December 2019 20199 12431 H

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
20194 20184F
12A31H 12H31H
Group Note RM’000 RM’000
RE Fff & SEH FLEHFR
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WE MR 12 9,725 11,411
Right-of-use assets EAREE 13 3,362 3,469
Intangible assets mILEE 14 3,431 2,829
16,518 17,709
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 hEMEWFRIE 16 27,619 24,184
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTH® 17 26,097 18,351
53,716 42,535
Total assets EE#AE 70,234 60,244
Equity and liabilities EakaE
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade and other payables B 5 K HAth FE A /I8 18 3,354 4,774
Income tax payable FERETSHE 1,603 1,153
Loans and borrowings ERRER 19 2,118 1,975
Lease liabilities HERE 20 71 67
7,146 7,969
Net current FENFEE 46,570 34,566
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIER TG (& 15 592 600
Loans and borrowings B REER 19 14,270 16,431
Lease liabilities HMEBE 20 234 305
15,096 17,336
Total liabilities EEAH 22,242 25,305
Net assets EEFE 47,992 34,939
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

As at 31 December 2019 R2019%F 12431 H

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20195 20184

12A31H 12A31H

Group Note RM’000 RM’000

RE Bt 5 F£&5 FLER
Equity s

Share capital A& A 21 - -

Merger reserve BHHREE 22 4,800 4,800

Retained earnings RE BN 43,192 30,139

Total equity ERem 47,992 34,939

Total equity and liabilities EERABEHEE 70,234 60,244

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an
integral part of the financial statements.

80 C-Link Squared Limited Annual Report 2019

BEPM & 5t IERSR K MR R MY SE R A B 75 R M9 AR B BB

7 e



</> ~

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AERREER

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

Share capital Merger reserve Retained
(Note 21) (Note 22) earnings Total equity
R ARRE

(FHE21) (HtE22) REBF EHEAH

Group Note RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

r&E W LER LEH LEH LEH

At 1 January 2018 201851818 . 4,800 25,359 30,159

Total comprehensive income 2HKEEE - - 11,780 11,780
Transaction with owners: HBRAERTNRS

Dividends e 28 - - (7,000 (7,000

At 31 December 2018 20185124318 - 4,800 30,139 34,939

At 1 January 2019 H2019%1818 - 4,800 30,139 34,939

Total comprehensive income ZHKEESE - - 13,053 13,053

At 31 December 2019 H2019F12831H - 4,800 43,192 47,992

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an &M & 5B 58 M AR FE R w18 A B 765 3R 3% 69 4B Ak 35T
integral part of the financial statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

1.1.2019 to 1.1.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
20194 2018%F
181HZ 1H1BZ
20195 20184
12A81H 12H31H
Group Note RM'000 RM'000
RE Bt <5 FLER
Cash flows from operating activities RETEFIBRERE
Profit before tax P 54 B g A 19,015 16,615
Adjustments for: BTANIEBEHFEE
Interest income FEWA 5 (468) (239)
Interest expense FIEFX 878 384
Amortisation of transaction costs RGP 6 20 7
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 6 17 19
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #7% « iE KRR EITE 7 1,969 1,883
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETNE 7 107 107
Impairment loss on property, plant and VI S R EREEE
equipment 7 - 60
Allowance for expected credit losses B RWERBEEEBE
on trade receivables Ecdi] 7 170 127
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERE 7 677 520
Operating cash flows before changes LEESRIYRIILERENE
in working capital 22,385 19,483
Changes in working capital: LEESEE):
Trade receivables B 5 W E (1,102 (3,940
Other receivables F At IR (1,985) (1,384)
Trade payables B 53R IE 96 (1,524)
Other payables b S SR8 (1,504) 1,372
Amounts due from/to related parties JE U &~ RE B 5 RUB (518) 8,347
Cash flows from operations KEEHFAERERE 17,372 22,354
Tax paid, net of tax refunded BB MRERHR (5,520) 4,727
Net cash flows from operating activities CESEBFSIR S RE T 11,852 17,627
Cash flows from investing activities RETEHRBRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  BEEW ¥  HE L&E 12 (283) (658)
Payments for software development E kS R DN
expenditure 14 (1,279) (1,219)
Interest received =R & NS) 468 239
Withdrawal of fixed deposit REUE Bi1F R 5 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREERHFARSMEFE (1,089) (1,638)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GeRERER

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

1.1.2019 to 1.1.2018 to

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20194 20184

181HZ 1H1BZ

20195 20184

12A81H 12H31H

Group Note RM'000 RM'000

RE Bt <°E FLER
Cash flows from financing activities RMETBHRESRERE

Dividend paid BERE - (21,800)

Drawdown of borrowing REUE R - 19,000

Payments for transaction costs R G ANT R = (159)

Interest paid ERFE (890) (305)

Repayment of term loan EETFTHER (2,038) (442)

Repayment of lease liabilities HEAEaE (84) (61

Net cash flows used in financing activities BEEHFARSREFE (3,012) (3,757)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RE& R R &S E YL N FEE 7,751 12,232
Cash and cash equivalents FNRERRLSEEY

at the beginning of the year 18,346 6,114
Cash and cash equivalents FREASRESEEY

at the end of the year 17 26,097 18,346

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an &M & 5B 58 M AR FE R w18 A B 765 3R 3% 69 4B Ak 35T
integral part of the financial statements. e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

1.

84

CORPORATE INFORMATION

C-Link Squared Limited. (the “Company”) is an exempted company
with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at No. 1,
Persiaran Sungai Buloh, Taman Industri Sungai Buloh, 47810 Kota
Damansara, Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia.

The registered office of the Company is located at P.O. Box 1350,
Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company’s principal subsidiaries, Coeus Systems Sdn. Bhd. and
Compugraphic Media Sdn. Bhd. (the “Companies”), were engaged
in the provision of outsourced data and document management
services in Malaysia. There have been no significant changes in the
nature of the principal activities during the financial year.

In preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”), the Group went through a corporate reorganisation
(the “Reorganisation”) whereby the Company became the holding
corporation of the Companies on 11 January 2019. After the
completion of the Reorganisation, the Company is equally owned
by the directors, Frank Ling and Will Ling (the “Directors”) via Flash
Dragon Ltd. and Jupiter Rain Ltd. respectively.

C-Link Squared Limited Annual Report 2019
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C-Link Squared Limited. (AR F]) A
—XPRHASESTMRIHNEREER
NAEARNAIWEZEEME AN, 1,
Persiaran Sungai Buloh, Taman Industri
Sungai Buloh, 47810 Kota Damansara,
Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan,
Malaysia °

RAF R FEMPFERLMNP.O. Box 1350,
Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands °

RATNEEFH RV EER B ZE2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued) 1.

As at the date of this report, the Company has direct and indirect
interests in its subsidiaries, all of which are private limited liability
companies (or, if incorporated outside Malaysia, have substantially
similar characteristics to a private company incorporated in

RAEER (&)

RARERH ARARNEMBRAES
BERLkEEED MAERB QR R
ABRRA (AR SR EEHEI MK
3 RIEE R SRS A AR LA A R

Malaysia), the particulars of which are set out below:

BIRBHELNSE)  BREFBHINET

Issued Effective
Place and date of ordinary proportion
incorporation and share of ownership
Company name place of operations capital interest 2019 Principal activities
FE A St B B BT 20195 B
AR BB DR & B ZERRAEA FrEEEEL ZEEFH
Held by the Company:
BEREFE
Coeus Systems (BVI) Limited ** BVI 19 June 2018 USD50,000 100 Investment holding
Coeus Systems (BVI) Limited ** HERLEHE 50,000% 7T 100 WEER
20186 A19H
Compugraphic Media (BVI) BVI 19 June 2018 USD50,000 100 Investment holding
Limited **
Compugraphic Media (BVI) HEELHS 50,000% 7T 100 WEER
Limited ** 20186 H519H
C-Link Squared Limited ** BVI 6 August 2018 USD50,000 100 Investment holding
C-Link Squared Limited ** BBRLHES 50,000% 7T 100 &EERK
201858 H6H
Held by Coeus Systems (BVI) Limited:
H1Coeus Systems (BVI) LimitediZ 4 :
Coeus Systems Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 12 July 2002 RM2,400,000 100" Outsourced data and
(“Coeus System”) * document management
services
Coeus Systems Sdn. Bhd. BREE 2,400,000% & 100% HNHIBUR N S IR AR 75
(I'Coeus System |) * 200247 A 12A
Held by Compugraphic Media (BVI) Limited:
f1 Compugraphic Media (BVI) Limited#& & :
Compugraphic Media Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM2,400,000 100* OQutsourced data and

(“Compugraphi Media”) *

10 February 2000

Compugraphic Media Sdn. Bhd. & 2k 78 55

([ Compugraphi Media | ) *

200042 A10H

2,400,000 & 4

100"

2019 3}  C-Link Squared Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued) 1. RARER#E)
Issued Effective
Place and date of ordinary proportion
incorporation and share of ownership
Company nhame place of operations capital interest 2019 Principal activities
R AL 3 B R B A 21T 2019 B
AT BB DR & B ZRERRA FARREELS FEEH
Held by C-Link Squared Limited:
i C-Link Squared LimitediF 7 :
C-Link Squared Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM2 100* Rendering of software
(“C-Link Malaysia”) *** 20 June 2018 services
C-Link Squared Sdn. Bhd. B2RFE D 2R E R 100* HR R E 1 IR TS
([C-Link Malaysia | ) =** 20186 H520H
* The statutory financial statements of these entities for the year * BARS R PE L & B R R S AR A A%

ended 31 December 2018 prepared under Malaysian Private Entities LEBHZ2018F12A31B LFENEATE

86

Reporting Standard were audited by Wong Loh Hun & Associates,
approved auditor under the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The
statutory financial statements of these entities for the year ended
31 December 2019 are not available at the date of this financial
statements.

No audited financial statements have been prepared for these entities
since their incorporation as these entities were not subject to any
statutory audit requirements under the relevant rules and regulations
in its jurisdiction of incorporation.

The statutory financial statements of this entity for the period ended
31 December 2018 prepared under Malaysian Private Entities
Reporting Standard were audited by CM Chin & Co, approved auditor
under the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The statutory financial
statements of this entity for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
not available at the date of this financial statements.

On 11 January 2019, the Directors of the Company completed the
transfer of the entire issued and paid up share capital in the entities to
their respective holding corporation. Following the transaction, the entity
became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Prior to
this date, the entity was held equally by the Directors of the Company.

The financial statements of the Group were authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with a
resolution of the Directors on 22 April 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBERHEE
POLICIES
2.1 Basis of preparation 21 REHEE

BARE ZEAREHREEARE

The Companies were under common control of the Directors

before and after the Reorganisation. The Directors have been
jointly making decisions in all significance matters of the
Companies, including business strategies and opportunities,
budget and financial performance.

The Directors have also confirmed this arrangement via a
Deed of Confirmation (‘Deed”) where the Directors agreed
to, and shall continue until the termination of the Deed to,
consult each other and reach an unanimous consensus
among themselves on such matters being the subject
matters of any shareholders’ meeting of the Companies, and
have historically voted on such resolutions in the same way.

Accordingly, the financial statements of the Group have been
prepared by applying the pooling of interest method as if the
Companies have always been combined since the date the
Companies had come under common control.

On that basis, the combined statement of comprehensive
income, the combined statement of changes in equity and
the combined statement of cash flows are prepared as if the
current group structure had been in existence throughout the
year ended 31 December 2018. The combined statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2018 present the
aggregated assets and liabilities of the companies now
comprising the Group, as if the current group structure had
been in existence at those dates.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting policies
below.

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia
(“RM”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand,
except when otherwise indicated.
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2.

88

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those
of the previous financial year as the Group has early adopted
the following standards that are effective for annual financial
period beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty
over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendments,
Curtailment or Settlement

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle:
Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations
Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes
Amendments to IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

C-Link Squared Limited Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3. Standards issued but not yet effective

2.

The standards that are issued but not yet effective up to
the date of issuance of the Group’s financial statements are
disclosed below.

Description ot

EESTHEEAE @)

23. BEMERKRERVER

TXRBEBEAERETBRREM
Z BB R R A R 2E R

Effective for

annual periods
beginning on

or after

RUT AR z#%
MM EERBER

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements 275

Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and

IFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark

BRI E ERIEIRE T ALEKE 6

Eil - R EA LA RN 20

R A U OSE S AT A B IR
B3 (AT 2B RS

FR RTS8 R R 0% - R R
R F50%E R BB B 9

1 January 2020
202041 A1H
1 January 2020
2020%1H1H
1 January 2020
20201 A31H
1 January 2020
202041 A1H

FTRIERT AR R ERE

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

The Group intends to adopt these standards when they
become effective. The directors do not anticipate that the
application of these standards and interpretations will have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

BB BHEEREITRRRE L

B B 15l 5 AR B 31 05% SR BB & =t 22 Rl
FBRERT AR EF BEBE N A K
BERRCHEMEELEITE

1 January 2021
202141 71H
Deferred
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEGTHEHE @)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Basis of consolidation 24 HRBEE
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial REMBHRERVERNEE RENE
statements of the Group and its subsidiaries as at the RNERRE AN BHRE -

reporting date.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, EAEEHLHEEEHRERH A E
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and Bl A ER bR s = BRI R BB
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over HITEHRNE N EZ IR R
the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee fif, ENEiGEfliE - AEEms -2 HEE
and only if, the Group has: REEEA NI F IR A 263
. power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it . HEEBEHRMEN (AR THE
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the BRIERREHRERESH
investee); BENRIIRBRER)
e exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its . SEREHREBEENIE
involvement with the investee; BRI =
. the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its . THEERELUROENUATE
returns. HEHMEES -
Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting —MERT A AT AZER
rights results in control. To support this presumption and SRR S « B E UL HEE K
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or WMAEERES L RIEEHRANZHIE
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant SHRALER T - BIAREERET
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power HEHRGHEBHREHRNE R
over an investee, including: eEE—VHEBEERER B
. the contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote . HIEEHRHEMEEREAD
holders of the investee; BHRITHE:
e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; o  HtbAHLHMEAENERN:
e the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights. . AEENEEERBERE
-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

EESTHEEAE @)

24 HEEXE ()

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation
of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) are attributed to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-
controlling interest and other components of equity, while
any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any
investment retained is recognised at fair value.

HEERERRR=TESE RS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHHEME @)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.5 Basis of combination 25 EHE%E
The combined financial statements comprise the financial EHUBEREBENEARNGE
statements of subsidiaries as at the reporting date. HEAMB BHE - REA T IEHRE
The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the REAMNNEB RN R ER
preparation of the combined financial statements are HEMRE B HRR -

prepared using the same reporting date.

Subsidiaries are those corporations, partnerships or other MEARIEAEBGEYENE R
entities (including special purpose entities) in which the BRERITERERIRE AR E S g
Group has power to exercise control over the financial and ESANEMAR - ARLERHME
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities, B(ERFEKREMNER) BEHE
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one B LR ERAOBRRE R
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential EEROEHS —EEBR #gZE
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are WA FITERERBEREE
considered when assessing whether the Group controls ZIFEERTE-

another entity.

Subsidiaries are combined from the date of acquisition, being MIB AR 8 YE B B (AR ERE
the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to THEEH)REAH WEESH
be combined until the date that such control ceases. BEERXAEBEHIENBBRAL-
Under the pooling of interest method, the results of the REETES S 2B ARMNE
subsidiary are presented as if the combination had been SR ANE O E AT B T B R
effected throughout the current and previous financial EEAER -EHEEBNEERBEN
years. The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are HFEE IR A AE DABR (8 R BR -
reflected at their carrying amounts from the perspective of the TRNOREEWRE] EROER
common control shareholders. Any difference between the ZHBNERNEEIRNERRRER
consideration paid and the equity of the “acquired” entity is EOHREE -

reflected within equity as merger reserve.

All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains and FBESBERAREGEH KHRER
losses resulting from intra— group transactions and dividends NRARIMER P EERNRER W R E
are eliminated on combination in full. BUARKREEES IR B SRR -
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 26 V¥ -BERSZE
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially FIBEWE BB RZHIEE 75K
recorded at cost. The cost of an item of property, plant RAAR-BEEEBZHYE BFERRK
and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is 18 B M8 2 R R4S B R 25 7] B
probable that future economic benefits associated with the AREE - HZIEEB 2B A SEih
item will flow to and the cost of the item can be measured FTER - AHZEBENKNAERAEE
reliably. =3
Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment RIE VBB RREEK AR
are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 2 TERERFBEBEFE WX
accumulated impairment losses. When significant parts of HowE BEMEEAITKRESR
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced AAEEegEEHEIERAER
in intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual EFERTFHRTENERNEE - R
assets with specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively. o RETHERER  EFAER
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost R BERAR R BFER&ER
is recognised in the carrying amount of the property, plant BREERNERAEEERA FTEEM
and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria HERRERAREEREERA
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are R e
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated based on the ME HEREEREBETXAHEE
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: HEtRAIE BT E
Factory building 50 years
IHEF 50%F
Shop lot 50 years
[ 50%F
Renovation of building 10 years
EFEH 104
Plant and machinery 510 10 years
B 55 T M 52104
Computer and software 3 to 5 years
B R 3E54F
Motor vehicles 5 years
B 54
Furniture and fittings 10 years
RERKE 106
Office equipment 10 years
HYNS S 106
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2.

94

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Assets under construction included in property, plant and
equipment are not depreciated as these assets are not yet
available for use.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method
are reviewed at each financial year-end, and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
derecognition of the asset is included in the profit or loss in
the period the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or
loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over
the estimated useful lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method are reviewed at least at each financial year-end.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period
or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes
in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in profit or loss.

C-Link Squared Limited Annual Report 2019
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e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if the events and
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired either individually or at the cash-generating unit
level. Such intangible assets are not amortised.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at
the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss.

Software development expenditure

Software development expenditure comprises purchased
software, manpower and related overhead incurred directly
in the development of computer software. Software
development expenditures are recognised as an intangible
asset when the Group can demonstrate:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

o its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the
asset;

o how the asset will generate future economic benefits;

o the availability of resources to complete the asset;

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
development; and

° the ability to use the intangible asset generated.
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2.

96

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Intangible assets (Continued)
Software development expenditure (Continued)

Following initial recognition of the software development
expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development
is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised
over the period of expected future benefit at the principal
annual amortisation rate of 20%. Amortisation is recorded in
cost of sales. During the period of development, the asset is
tested for impairment annually.

Software development expenditures which are not or have
ceased to be commercially viable are written off.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of
the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised
right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.
Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEME @)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.9 Lease liabilities 29 HEEE

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group
recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payment to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonable certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which
the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit the lease is
not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change
in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is
an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or CGU'’s fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. BEEETHERME@

POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets 210 &M EERE (&)

98

(Continued)

The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on
available data from binding sales transactions, conducted
at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other
available fair value indicators.

The value in use calculation is based on a Discounted
Cash Flows (“DCF”) model. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. The cash flows are derived from the
budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring
activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant
future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance
of the CGU being tested. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year. The recoverable amount is sensitive
to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes.

Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEETHEHE @)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets 210 EMEERE (#)
(Continued)
An assessment is made at each reporting date whether there REREEH BIEESE0RE
is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses TBEEERZBEEETBFER
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication BERL MFEZETR AEEE
exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGUs recoverable FEEENReELEBEMNAIKES
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed FoBECHRAZREBEEES L
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used RERBEBEBERAANETEED
to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last e B &8 2 Rk A &2 EE - &
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so EARER BEEERAEISHLY
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its HalEl &5 7T$ﬁﬁ§51ﬁiﬂ?$¢
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that EIWEpEERRBEEENT)
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no T#HTFREEHEEE (0K %%)
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. ERABLIREEER-

Such reversal is recognised in the profit or loss.

2.11 Financial instruments - initial recognition 211 eI AE-YSHAREETE
and subsequent measurement
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a cHMIARELE—EAEENeRE
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity ERs—AEENeRaEREDR
instrument of another entity. TEMNEREL -
() Financial assets (i) =S=@REE
Initial recognition and measurement WA ERRTE
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as TRMEERVISERE D
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value BEBIREBHEKN ZAFE
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair FFAEMmE2EYE (Hte2AE
value through profit or loss. Wam) RiE A FEF ABE&EaT
£o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

2.

100

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial instruments - initial recognition
and subsequent measurement (Continued)

@

Financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group’s business model
for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under
IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OClI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the
principal amount outstanding. This assessment is
referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an
instrument level.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

C-Link Squared Limited Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial instruments - initial recognition
and subsequent measurement (Continued)

0]

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial

assets are classified in four categories:

Q)

@

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with
recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

Financial assets designated at fair value through
OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Group. The
Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

EESTHEEAE @)

211 eRIA-YSHAREETE
()
() S®EEHE)
RE&sE
REBHEMS 2REES
=Yg

(1) ZBEXAFENDAE
BE(BBTR)
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REFHRE R EE (E%
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WK S BEE  RRIE
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BB E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

2.

102

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial instruments - initial recognition
and subsequent measurement (Continued)

@

Financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued))

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
(Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest (EIR) method
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes
trade and other receivables.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

° The rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired;

° The Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Financial instruments - initial recognition
and subsequent measurement (Continued)

0]

Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued))

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

2.

104

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial instruments - initial recognition
and subsequent measurement (Continued)

@

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12— month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

For trade and other receivables, the Group applies a
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 365 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial instruments - initial recognition
and subsequent measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
plus, in the case of loans and borrowings, directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification, as described below:

Loan and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Group.
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in profit or
loss.

This category generally applies to interest-bearing
loans and borrowings.

2. EESNHESE@®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

2.

106

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial instruments - initial recognition
and subsequent measurement (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

2.12 Foreign currency

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

The Group’s financial statements are presented in
Ringgit Malaysia (RM). The Company’s functional
currency is Hong Kong Dollar (HKD), i.e., the currency
of the primary economic environment in which it
operates. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Foreign currency (Continued)

(b)

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the
respective functional currencies of the entities within
the Group and are recorded on initial recognition in the
functional currencies at exchange rates approximating
those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the
reporting date. Non-monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies that are measured at historical
cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies measured at fair
value are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items or on translating monetary items at the
reporting date are recognised in profit or loss except
for exchange differences arising on monetary items
that form part of the Group’s operations, which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under foreign currency translation reserve
in equity.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for the differences
arising on the translation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity. Exchange differences arising from
such non-monetary items are also recognised directly
in equity.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. BEEETHERME@

POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents 213 HEeREAESEEY

108

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial
position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as
they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable
that an outflow of economic resources will be required to
settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEETHEHE @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Fair value measurement 215 A EFE

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at
each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

° in the principal market for the asset or liability; or

o in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEGTHEHE @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Fair value measurement (Continued) 215 A FEFE (&)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

o Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has
determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and
the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. The
methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values of
the Group’s financial instruments are disclosed in Note 24.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEESTHEREME @

POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Employee benefits 216 EERF

(a) Short-term benefits (a) SEHIEF
Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security TE #Fe A RESRERME
contributions are recognised as an expenses in the FRAREE (E BB AR
reporting period in which the associated services BRERBERARAZ -ER
are rendered by employees of the Group. Short B IR IR FEIE M E R R H
term accumulating compensated absences such as KRR - BIFE R AR
paid annual leave are recognised when services are SEEHNR (Pl EFFR)
rendered by employees that increase their entitement RHERFFHRE (HlmR
to future compensated absences. Short term non- R)NBRHAEERER -
accumulating compensated absences such as sick
and medical leave are recognised when the absences
oceur.

(b) Defined contribution plans (b) EFEMHENREE
As required by law, companies in Malaysia contribute BIBEERTE BRATHR
to the state pension scheme, the Employees Provident AIAMBEZFERETEEER
Fund (“EPF”). Such contributions are recognised as Be([BREAES ) ERH
an expense in the profit or loss as incurred. Once the o ERTNELARNER
contributions have been paid, the Group has no further NERBRAT —BEXIZSE
payment obligations. R AEBRIEE— TR

EY
(c) Employee leave entitlement (c) REEEZRH

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

REZFERINEEEZER
HKHER - CHERERERS
BREHREMEZAFRL
mEt AR R EE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

2.

112

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group is involved in the business of providing outsourced

data and document management services. Revenue from

contracts with customers is recognised when control of
the goods or services is transferred to the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. The Group has generally concluded that it is the
principal in its revenue arrangements.

(a)

Outsourced document management services

The Group enters into contracts with customers for
the provision of outsourced document management
services and works are performed upon receipt of
job orders from the customers, typically on a monthly
basis. Outsourced document management services
include coding of the format/presentation of the
document; converting raw data into the desired format/
presentation; and delivering the document to the end-
customers in an agreed mode.

Such contracts comprise a single performance
obligation because the Group’s promise to transfer the
services to the customer is not separately identifiable
as each service within the series is in fact a phase
within the outsourced document management services
that are highly interdependent and highly interrelated
to each other in producing an integrated/combined
output to the customer, i.e., to deliver the document in
the desired format to its customers with a copy kept
as record. Besides, the Group has not and will not
provide part of the services as the customer is not likely
to engage multiple parties to perform different phases
of the outsourced document management services
as each phase is highly interdependent and highly
interrelated with each other.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Outsourced document management services
(Continued)

The Group recognises revenue from the provision of
outsourced document management services at a point
in time because the customer will only receive and
consume the benefits until the document is delivered to
its customers.

Enterprise software solutions

@

(i)

Customised software

The Group provides customised software which
is significantly modified to suit the requirements
of a customer. The modification, testing and
installation of the software are carried out in the
customer’s computer system.

The Group recognises revenue from the
provision of customised software over time,
using an input method to measure progress
towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group.

Electronic document warehouse services

The Group enters into contracts with customers
for the provision of electronic document
warehouse services which include:

- Storing customers’ document in electronic
document warehouse

- Enabling unlimited direct document
retrieval by customers

(%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

2.

114

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b)

(d)

Enterprise software solutions (Continued)

(i)  Electronic document warehouse services
(Continued)

Such contracts comprise of a single
performance obligation because the Group’s
promise to store and enable direct document
retrieval to the customer is not separately
identifiable as they are highly interdependent and
highly interrelated to each other, i.e., the Group
will not be able to provide the direct document
retrieval service without having to provide the
document storage services.

The Group recognises revenue from the
provision of electronic document warehouse
services over time because the customers
receive and consume the benefits as and when
the Group provides the access to the electronic
document warehouse over time.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in
exchange for services transferred to the customer.
If the Group performs by transferring services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised
for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount
of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(e)

U]

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services
to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Group transfers goods or services to the
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the
payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract.

Cost to obtain a contract

The Group pays sales commission to its employees
for each contract that they obtain for bundled sales
of equipment and installation services. The Group has
elected to apply the optional practical expedient for
costs to obtain a contract which allows the Group to
immediately expense sales commissions (included
under employee benefits and part of cost of sales)
because the amortisation period of the asset that the
Group otherwise would have used is one year or less.

2.18 Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used

to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in
equity is recognised in equity and not in the profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. BEEETHERME@

POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Taxes (Continued) 2.18 BHi1E (&)

116

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

- where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

- where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEETHEHE @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Taxes (Continued) 2.18 Bi1E (4#)

Deferred tax (Continued)

- in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current income tax
assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEGTHEHE @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Taxes (Continued) 2.18 BHi1E (&)

Sales tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
amount of sales tax, except:

o when the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or
services is not recoverable from the taxation authority,
in which case, the sales tax is recognised as part of
the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item, as applicable; and

o receivables and payables that are stated with the
amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable
to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the statement of financial position.

Goods and Service Tax (“GST”)

The net amount of GST being the difference between output
and input of GST, payable to or receivable from the respective
authorities at the reporting date, is included in trade and other
payables or trade and other receivables in the statement of
financial position.

2.19 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statements of
financial position based on current/non-current classification.
An asset is current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or
consumed in the normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the
reporting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in the normal operating
cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current
assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Contingencies

A contingent liability is:

0} A possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Group; or

(i) A present obligation that arises from past events but is
not recognised because:

o it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; or

° the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future event(s) not
wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Related parties

A related party is defined as follows:

0} A person or a close member or that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) Has control or joint control over the Group;
(2)  Has significant influence over the Group; or

(8) Is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
condition applies:

(1)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(2)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the other entity is a
member).

(8)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(4)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(5)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
any entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHHEME @)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Related parties (Continued) 222 BT (&)
A related party is defined as follows: (Continued) A EEWT (&)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (i) FTFEATEMEENERBER
condition applies: (Continued) NEBMEBEH S (8)
(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (6) ZEBX(FETEALE
person identified in (i). il 2 2 Rl o
(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant 7 RHA )IEFETEEH/\i%TEZ
influence over the entity or is a member of the ERAEEATENRZ
key management personnel of the entity (or of a T (jZnA HFESRAF)
parent of the entity). E’J FEEEBAE-

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. EASFHE K&
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires REAEENVBREATZEEEFLH
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that B b ET MR - MU S A (AR R
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and e¥ENs X EEHAGENRE S
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting BHoOLUMRBEAPNRABERE-A
date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates i b EWERETHTEE A BHE
could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to EHHBRIVENEERABNER@EE
the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future. HERFAENLGE
3.1 Critical judgements made in applying 3.1 FEASHBEREEL B H
accounting policies
There were no critical judgements made by management in EEEREARSESHEENR
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies that BRREHEENMBEE EI’J B %
have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the METHANCEEEATENHA
financial statements during the current financial year. g8 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are set out below:

(a)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
and amortisation of intangible asset

The estimates for the residual values, useful lives and
related depreciation charges for property, plant and
equipment and amortisation of software development
expenditure are based on commercial factors which
could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitors’ actions in response to
the market conditions. The Group anticipates that the
residual values of its property, plant and equipment and
software development expenditure will be insignificant.
As a result, residual values are not being taken into
consideration for the computation of the depreciable
amount. Changes in the expected level of usage and
technological development could impact the economic
useful lives and the residual values of these assets,
therefore future depreciation charges could be revised.

3.

BEREHHE R A (8
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Bl UNNE
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3.

124

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs to sell is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance).

C-Link Squared Limited Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables (Continued)

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults in the financial sector, the historical default
rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of
ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical
credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in Note 25(a).

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with
the accounting policy for research and development
costs in Note 2.7. Determining the amounts to be
capitalised requires management to make assumptions
regarding the expected future cash generation of the
assets, discount rates to be applied and the expected
period of benefits. As at 31 December 2019, the
carrying amounts of capitalised development costs
were RM3.4 million (2018: RM2.8 million).

3.

BEREHHE R A (8
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4. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 4. REHEFFITLSHHKE
CUSTOMERS
4.1 Disaggregated revenue information 41 WHEHEEHR
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenue TXEHIAEBREEEPEIIA
from contracts with customers: AR o 48

1.1.2019 to 1.1.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20195 20184
181HZ 1H1HZ
20194 2018%F
12A31H 12H31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
RE <E To&FR
Type of services PR 7% &
Outsourced document ANFISTHHE IR AR TS
management services 64,487 65,176
Enterprise software solutions: ERGRATER:
— Customised software — 7E B 6,505 1,312
— Electronic document warehouse —EFXHERRS
services 534 607
Total revenue from REEEFITLAHNARE
contracts with customers 71,526 67,095
Geographical markets 35 35
Malaysia BRE R 66,750 66,836
Singapore 2N 4,776 259
Total revenue from contracts REEEFTLSHNNANE
with customers 71,526 67,095
Timing of revenue recognition Wt 25 7 2R B BE
At a point in time T 0 el 2 64,487 65,176
Over time = — B 7,039 1,919
Total revenue from contracts REEEFFITLANNARE
with customers 71,526 67,095
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E
4. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 4. REHEEFFFTLSHHWE (5
CUSTOMERS (Continued)

4.2 Performance obligations 42 BHEMR

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Outsourced document management services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time and
payment is generally due upon completion of the service.

Customised software

The performance obligation is satisfied over-time and
payment is generally due upon achieving pre-agreed billing
milestones.

Electronic document warehouse services

The performance obligation is satisfied over-time and
payment is generally due in advance at the beginning of the
service period.

FHEREERBNE TN ARG
T

A BRI
B0 B AE RS OB B 17 B — SRR
R S S 3 o

TE B A
BHOEEERRETE —RNER
T8 5 199 E B0 R SRR B RS A o

EFXHERER®
BHEER —BRERANETANR—
A% & 17 BR 7% A ] 52 46 AT 2V HI S A

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance RIEHBHPRETFRBBEOEE (K

obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at reporting BT E D REBIT) MR 5 EHE W
date are, as follows: ™

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20194 20184

12A31H 12H31H

Group RM'000 RM'000

RE <& FLER

Expected to be recognised: FEHANTEBRER:

Within one year —FRN 1,136 -

More than one year — LA F 4,225 -

5,361 -

The Group applies the practical expedient on the exemption
to disclose the information on the remaining performance
obligations that have original expected durations of one year
or less.

The remaining performance obligations expected to be
recognised in more than one year as at 31 December 2019
relate to the maintenance services to be satisfied within six
years.

AEBERBEEBERARMRS —
FHIARNNTIERE LB E B E BHE
REREREX-

HR2019F12A31HBHEIN —F LA £
BRANEGREHNETEBER AAFR
BT HEERIEER -
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5.

128

OTHER INCOME 5. Hftlg A
1.1.2019 to 1.1.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
20195 20184
181 Z 1H1H=Z
2019F 20184
12A31H 12H31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
rEE FLER FLER
Interest income on fixed deposits 7E HATF B ) B A 468 239
Insurance compensation RERES(E - 2
Others Hh 98 -
566 241

FINANCE COSTS 6. MERAK
1.1.2019 to 1.1.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
20195 20184
1818 & 1A1RZE
20194 20184
12A31H 12H31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
& FELEH FLER

Interest expense on: Ty E R SR

— term loan —EHER 846 337
— overdraft —BX 3 34
- others —HM 29 13
— lease liabilities (Note 20) —HEAaE (MF20) 17 19
Amortisation of transaction costs (Note 19) RS (M3E19) 20 7
915 410
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBIANER
The following items have been included in arriving at profit before T3S IEDET ABRB AR -
tax:

1.1.2019 to 1.1.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20195 20184

1A1BZE 1H1BZ

20194 20184

12A31H 12A31H

Group RM'000 RM'000

rEH <E ki

Auditors’ remuneration — statutory ZERE — 5T 247 20

Staff costs (Note 9) B IR (FIEr9) 7,233 8,133

Property, plant and equipment: LIER ST

— depreciation (Note 12) — ¥ & (MizE12) 1,969 1,883

— impairment loss (Note 12) —REFBRE (HiE12) - 60

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 13) FREEEFRE (M3E13) 107 107

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 14) | EESE (MFE14) 677 520
Allowance for expected credit losses B ZRWIETEREEBERE

on trade receivables (Note 16) (MIzE16) 170 127

Listing expenses FhAX 3,540 4,024

Legal and other professional fees FEERHMEXER 195 67
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8.

130

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s net
profit attributable to owners of the parent by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic
and diluted earnings per share computations:

8.

BREF
SRAARTI RS2 AES ABGEAR
B 4 DA B 4R E P 5 T2 51 BB AR B
AT B -

AT RBR T S AR E AR I 358 2 F P A Y
Yoas B B0 8%

1.1.2019 to 1.1.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
20195 20184
181 Z 1H1H=Z
2019F 20184
12A31H 12H31H
Profit net of tax attributable to owners of the HRREA AEERTBEE T
parent (RM’000) (F25H) 13,053 11,780
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR T E S E KR T T @A
for basic earnings per share computation niEFEHE (FR)
('000) 600,000 600,000
Basic earnings per share (RM sen) ERERAN(SHFRFD 2.18 1.96

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate
the basic earnings per share amounts for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 was based on 600,000,000 ordinary
shares, representing the number of ordinary shares of the Company
immediately after the Capitalisation Issue (as explained in Note 31),
as if all these shares had been in issue throughout the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018.

The Group had no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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9. STAFF COSTS 9. BEIRK

1.1.2019 to 1.1.2018 to

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20194 20184

1818 ZE 1A1BZ

20194 20184

12H31H 12H31H

Group RM'000 RM'000
AEH FELEH FLEHEE
Salaries and performance related bonuses e hERIBEENTL 7,718 8,324
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFH B 771 963
Other employee benefits HibE ERH 23 65
8,512 9,352

Less: Capitalised as software development B BN BB (HFE14)

expenditure (Note 14) (1,279) (1,219)

7,233 8,133

Included in staff costs are Executive Directors’ remuneration as

disclosed in Note 10.

B -

BIRABEMTI0RENNITE S

2019 3}  C-Link Squared Limited 131



L]
e e — ¢

+
AL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

9.

132

STAFF COSTS (Continued)

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two directors (2018: two directors). The details of directors’
remuneration are disclosed in Note 10. Details of the remaining
three (2018: three) highest paid employees whom are non-directors
during the year are as follows:

9.

B TR ()

FALERSFMEEERRMEES
(2018F - MAEER) " EFHMABRE
RHTEE10 - FAEB=F (20185F : =H)

VHEFNESFHHMEENFBOT

1.1.2019 to 1.1.2018 to

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20194 20184

1A1HZ 1A=

20195 20184

12A31H 12H31H

Group RM'000 RM'000
RE F£5 FLER
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥a 2R REDNE 739 360
Performance related bonuses HLR IR AR EAT 37 123
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 50 53
826 536

The number of three highest paid employees of the Group
(excluding executive directors) whose total remuneration during the

FRAFHEENFUTHEENAER =4
E=FHHER (TEEATESR) BB

year fell within the following bands are analysed below: U
1.1.2019 to 1.1.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
20195 20184
1A18 & I REES
Group 20194 20184F
TEH 12H31H 12A318
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 % 21,000,000/ 7T 3 3

During the year, no (2018: Nil) remuneration was paid by the Group
to the Directors or any of the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. EEFHM
The details of remuneration received/receivable by the Directors of AEBEERTBFED IR Z 5
the Group for the financial year are as follows: I
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
He 2R BEike
ok ENFR B 3 B Fek ol
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
TLES TLEE LEH TLES
31 December 2019 2019%12A31H
Executive Directors: HTEE:
Frank Ling Frank Ling - 8356 95 930
Will Ling Will Ling - 835 95 930
- 1,670 190 1,860
31 December 2018 2018%12A31H
Executive Directors; WITES:
Frank Ling Frank Ling 80 715 82 877
Will Ling Will Ling 80 715 82 877
160 1,430 164 1,754

Other Directors of the Group did not receive any remuneration
during the financial years ended 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018.

There was no (2018: Nil) arrangement under which a Director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the financial
year.

RE Z=2019F12 A31H K2018F12 A31
AIEREE A& EE b E = & IKER
EREE

NABBRFEE BEEERELRENE
T FH e HE (201845 : 42) -
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

11. BB X

1.1.2019 to 1.1.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
20194 2018%F
181 Z 1H1H=Z
2019F 20184
12A31H 12H31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
RE FLEHH FLER
Malaysian income tax: ERAEFEH
— Current year —ERFE 5,859 4,895
— Under provision —BHETR 111 -
5,970 4,895
Deferred tax (Note 15): EIEFLIE (FIFE15) -
— Relating to origination and reversal of —WEREENEEREBEBE
temporary differences (8) (60)
Income tax expense FriSfiF > 5,962 4,835
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11. FISBiB X (&)
Domestic income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax NSRRI FEREtERFEFIZS
rate of 24% of the estimated assessable profit for the year. R T A T B R 24%E H o
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the BERASESNRALER NARIHAE
Company is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands. R 2B SMMERTER -
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before BERAREETEMERBMEAENRR AN
tax at the statutory income tax rate to income tax expense at the FME SRR BEAEBERAEHRMN
effective income tax rate of the Group is as follows: EHEMMERATMEERNT

1.1.2019 to 1.1.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20194 20184
181HZ 1H1BZ
20194 20184
12A31H 12H31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
& <& FLER
Profit before tax B 5 B ) 19,015 16,615
Tax at Malaysian statutory tax rate of TS RAR AT R24%TEMFIIA
24% (2018: 24%) (20185 : 24%) 4,564 3,988
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes PBIEM S T MNBRARS 1,357 1,063
Effect of tax savings* BT R R 2 (70) (60)
Incentive on increased chargeable income JER T YL ZS 18 hn & 2B - (156)
Under provision of income tax in prior years BEFEGREBETR 111 -
Income tax expense for the year FRAEHAX 5,962 4,835
* Malaysian companies with paid up capital of not more than RM2.5 - BEAATBBAEESEHNERA
million are subject to a tax rate of 17% (2018: 18%) on their first 2 A A B500,000% 7 1 B R B UL A9 TR
RM500,000 of chargeable income. R E17% (20185 1 18% ) °
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

136

12. Y% -BERRE

Computer Capital
Factory Renovation Plant and and Motor Furniture Office work in
building Shop lot of building machinery software vehicles  and fittings equipment progress Total
i3
IREF L EREF  BREREE  EEREK RE  BERXE HORE BAIR Eh
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
158 T4E F4E eE F4E 45 F4E eE F4E 45 LE
31 December 2019 20195124318
Cost A
At 1 January 2019 01951 A1A 1,487 3,505 4579 5,954 3972 il 47 1,049 780 2514
Additions AE - - - 18 225 - 2 8 - 283
Wte off i - - (30) (1881) (6) - (16) 89) - (2,068)
Reclassifcation Exipr] - - - 530 250 - - - (780) -
At 31 December 2019 #20195128318 1,487 3505 4549 4621 4,391 il 493 972 - 20729
Accumulated depreciation ~ B3t17E
At 1 January 2019 20195141 317 380 1,764 4672 1473 676 345 67 - 10,454
Charge forthe year (Note 7).~ F B (Hf37) 0 70 439 3% 865 % % 114 - 1,969
Wite off bk - - - (1,281) (39 - (16) 83 - (1,419
At 31 December 2019 H019512A318 407 450 2,203 3777 2299 02 368 798 - 11,004
Accumulated impairment B3t fE
At 1 January 2019 R201951A18 - - - 649 - - - - - 649
Wte off i - - - (649) - - - - - (649)
At 31 December 2019 H2019512831R - - - - - - - - - -
Net carmying amount FEFE 1,080 3,055 2,346 844 2,092 9 125 174 9725

C-Link Squared Limited Annual Report 2019



</> ~

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% -BENKE (#)
(Continued)
Computer Capital
Factory Renovation Plant and and Motor Furniture Office work in
building Shop lot of building machinery software vehicles  and fittings equipment progress Total
i3
IEE? L BFEF  BEREH  SHEREE e GEREE BARE EAIR @it
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
158 LF 4% LF LF LF % LF LF L% %
31 December 2018 2018124318
Cost A&
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A17 1,487 3,506 4515 5,954 2450 ™ 43 1,011 1,785 21,856
Additions RE - - 64 - 517 - 39 38 - 658
Reclasscation EZpn] - - - - 1005 - - - (1,008) -
At 31 December 2018 H20185128318 1,487 3505 4579 5964 3972 ™ 477 1,049 780 2514
Accumulated depreciation ~ B3t17E
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H 347 310 1,314 4017 963 646 323 661 - 8571
Charge for the year (Note 7) R (I327) 0 70 450 655 50 % 2 106 - 1883
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12831 7 37 380 1,764 4672 1,473 676 345 767 - 10454
Accumulated impairment R HE
At 1 January 2018 0181 A1A - - - 589 - - - - - 589
Charge for the year (Note7)  ERE (M37) - - - 60 - - - - - 60
At 31 December 2018 HR2018E128318 - - - 649 - - - - - 649
Net carrying amount BREE 1,10 3,125 2815 633 2,499 % 132 282 780 11411
As at 31 December 2019, factory building and shop lot with 720195124318 - BRE 4218 &4,135,000
carrying amounts totaling RM4,135,000 (2018: RM4,235,000) are S EH 5 (20184 : 4,235,000 545 ) T
pledged as security for banking facilities of the Group as disclosed RIE T K P R (b B B HVE R I 5T 19PT 3

in Note 19. BEOAEERITRIE M-
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E
13. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 13. EREEE

The Group has lease contracts for leasehold land and office
premise used in its operations. Lease of leasehold land generally
has lease term between 85 and 97 years, while office premise
generally has lease terms between 5 and 10 years.

AEEpEEEMARETHERAT
EIvHEAH -HELHHAYNAE—
BN T85ZEI7TF MMt AEMEMOME
H—MR N TF5E10%F -

138

Leasehold
land Office premise Total

HELH WOAEYE @5t
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
iy L LE °F
31 December 2019 2019%12H31H
Cost B
At 1 January/31 December 2019 20191818 /124318 3,621 482 4,103
Accumulated depreciation E5iEii
At 1 January 2019 A2019F1 A1H 449 185 634
Charge for the year (Note 7) FRFAZ (HE7) 48 59 107
As at 31 December 2019 7201912 831H 497 244 741
Net carrying amount REFE 3,124 238 3,362
31 December 2018 2018%12A31AH
Cost D%
At 1 January/31 December 2018 20181 B18 /124318 3,621 482 4,103
Accumulated depreciation At E
At 1 January 2018 201841818 401 126 527
Charge for the year (Note 7) FARZ (HE7) 48 59 107
As at 31 December 2018 #2018%12A431H 449 185 634
Net carrying amount REFE 3,172 297 3,469

As at 31 December 2019, leasehold land is pledged as security for

banking facilities of the Group as disclosed in Note 19.

C-Link Squared Limited Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. BREE

Software development expenditure HUEEAX
Streamline  Streamline
document document
Streamline ~ Streamline management management
output electronic system system
management data phase | phase Il
system  warehouse (‘DmMS (‘DmMS
(“OMS”) (“EDW”) phase I) phase I") Total
Streamline  Streamline
document document
Streamline Streamline management management
output electronic system system
management data EIRE BN E
system  warehouse ([DMmS (fDM™S
(Toms])  ([EDW])  H1ER&R])  %2BR)) @t
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
r5E LER LER RER RER RER
31 December 2019 20195127318
Cost KA
At 1 January 2019 #2019F1A1H 848 1,354 1,185 437 3,824
Addtions (Note 9) AE (M9 - - - 1,279 1,279
At 31 December 2019 201912318 848 1,354 1,185 1,716 5,103
Accumulated amortisation 2 BH
At 1 January 2019 #2019F1 A1A 510 406 79 - 995
Charge for the year (Note 7) FNEZ (M) 170 n 236 - 677
At 31 December 2019 201912318 680 677 315 - 1,672
Net carrying amount RERE 168 677 870 1,716 3,431
31 December 2018 2018%12531H
Cost KA
At 1 January 2018 #2018E1A1H 848 1,354 403 - 2,605
Additions (Note 9) RE (M) - - 782 437 1,219
At 31 December 2018 2018F12A31H 848 1,354 1,185 437 3,824
Accumulated amortisation R B
At 1 January 2018 #2018F1A1H 340 135 - - 475
Charge for the year (Note 7) ENEZ (M) 170 n 79 - 520
At 31 December 2018 12018F12A31H 510 406 79 - 995
Net carrying amount REFE 338 948 1,106 437 2,829

Software development expenditure relates to staff costs (Note 9)
incurred for the development of software used by the Group to

generate revenue.

BHAEAX EmRBEARERRNAIE RS
MEHFESME TAK (M) /-
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

14.

140

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Amortisation

Amortisation of software development expenditure is included
in the “Cost of sales” line item in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

Impairment testing

The carrying value of the intangible assets is expected to be
recovered from probable future economic benefits that are
expected to be generated from the commercial exploitation of these
intangible assets. The remaining amortisation period at the financial
year end is less than 5 years.

Impairment testing of intangible assets not yet available for
use

Impairment testing for intangible assets not yet available for use
was carried out at the reporting dates, irrespective of whether there
is any indicator of impairment.

DMS phase Il (applicable as at 31 December 2019 and 31

14. BEE (#)

E]
BHHAERAXBEARE2EAKERD
[EEKRA]HBERN-

AR

BIVEENREERTHEENEZEE
FMEEMBREFAETELNRREEN =S
R o 7B R R Y R R 8 A D05
o

A ERANBRTLEERENR
REE A AT HERNETLEEET

BERR (TwESBEMRETR)

DMSZEIIfE E (2019412531 H K2018

December 2018) #£125310EH)
Budgeted
Growth gross Discount
Key assumptions: rate margin rate
BEmE: BR=E T ERZE AR &
11.1% 85.1% 15.0%

Growth rate — growth rate is based on management’s expectation
of the long-term forecast growth rate of the industry with reference
to external industry report.

Budgeted gross margin — budgeted gross margin represents the
past performance of the Group and expected market development.

Discount rate — pre-tax discount of 15% is used which reflects

specific risks and are determined by reference to the discount rate
for the industry.

C-Link Squared Limited Annual Report 2019
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e M RRHE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 14. BREE (#)
Impairment testing of intangible assets not yet available for Fa#tEANEEEERENR (&)
use (Continued)
DMS phase Il (applicable as at 31 December 2019 and 31 DMSE I R (R20194F12531H %2018
December 2018) (Continued) F12H531HEH) (&)
Business development — there will be no major changes in the E¥BER-BRADNEMNBLR EER
existing political, legal and economic conditions in Malaysia. KBRS RERES-
The following sensitivity analysis illustrates the impact of T3 BURRTE 5 AT 75 B R 3% BR 5 AT B 3R R 48
hypothetical increase of pre-tax discount rate by 1% or decrease of 1%k A9 38 & RO D1 % E R &
our growth rate by 1% on the headroom: 2:
Had the assumptions changed as below, the headroom would W fREZIRA T8 BREEAGIR D

decrease by:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20194 2018%F

12A31H 12A31H

RM'000 RM'000

F<ER FLER

Pre-tax discount rate increased by 1% B 56 AT BE 38 48 501 % 45 28

Growth rate decreased by 1% BRI 1% 28 21

Based on the result of the sensitivity analysis above, the directors RIEFMGRBRESINER EERE BR

considered that there is no reasonable possible change in any of R 5% A0 M AT ] A& 32 7T B2 2 ) 148 T 28 Bt 3R

the key assumptions that would cause the carrying amount of the SR REANEFEENREER
intangible asset that are not yet available for use as at the reporting BEAINE SR -

date to exceed its recoverable amount.
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e M RRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

15. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 15. EEBEEE
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
20194 2018%F
12A31H 12H31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
AEE F£& FLER
At beginning of the year REA] 600 660
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 11) RIBm AR (M) (8) (60)
At end of the year RER 592 600

The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities and

REHRT M BFEANRER A ERE

assets during the financial years prior to offsetting are as follows: EREKE S REEHIMT

Property, Other

plant and Intangible temporary
equipment assets differences Total

mE - Htt e
BRERRZE EBHVEE =8 @t
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

X&E FLE TLE FLE FLE

At 1 January 2019 720191 A1H 190 679 (269) 600
Recognised in profit or loss REGZNER (96) 144 (56) ®)
At 31 December 2019 #2019F12A831H 94 823 (325) 592
At 1 January 2018 720181 A1H 444 511 (295) 660
Recognised in profit or loss REZNER (254) 168 26 (60)
At 31 December 2018 #2018F12A831H 190 679 (269) 600
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16. E5 R H YRR

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
20194 20184
12A31H 12H31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
rE <& FLER
Trade receivables B S EWRIE
Third parties ET=F 19,995 18,893
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses B EEEEBERE (766) (596)
Trade receivables, net B 5 EIRIEE R 19,229 18,297
Other receivables H b e R E
Deposits b 303 129
Sundry receivables H b fE W SR IE 537 277
GST receivable from customers FEUS B P 0 78 on M AR 5 A 83 83
GST recoverable P 7 om B R B 635 635
Prepayments A B 2,939 1,388
Amounts due from related parties JE s BB 5 R 6 59
Amounts due from directors EUE EHIA 3,887 3,316
Other receivables, net b fE U SR IEFEE 8,390 5,887
Total trade and other receivables ESRHEMEWRIEEALE 27,619 24,184
Less: GST recoverable R AT U E 7 o K AR S A (635) (635)
Less: Prepayments W TEA RIB (2,939) (1,388)
Total debt instruments at amortised costs ZEERATFENEB T EALE
(excluding cash and bank balances) (TERERERBITHER) 24,045 22,161
Trade receivables B ZREWANIE

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30
days terms. They are recognised at their original invoice amounts
which represent their fair values on initial recognition.

2019 3}  C-Link Squared Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 16. B35 & H it EWFIE (80)

Trade receivables (Continued) g 2 EWRIE (&)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of RIS BIRIZ S R A I MR B ERER
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss WE S RINRIBENERRDITET

allowance, is as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
rE FLEH FLER
Within 1 month 1E AR 7,947 6,498
1 to 2 months 12218 A 3,026 4,768
2 to 3 months 2% 31 A 1,599 2,967
Over 3 months 3E A 6,657 4,064
19,229 18,297
Set out below is the movement in the allowance for expected credit TXHINE S RWFIEBEREEEERE
losses of trade receivables: R e -
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
2019F 20184
12A31H 12H31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
KEHE FLEH FLER
At beginning of the year REH] 596 469
Allowance during the year (Note 7) FRNEE (HT37) 170 127
At end of the year RER 766 596
The information about the credit exposures are disclosed in Note BREEMAORNE R ERHTE25() °
25(a).
Amounts due from related parties and FEWEE A R EERIE
directors
These amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are ZEFEBEEE T B RBREXE
repayable on demand. These amounts have been recovered B ZEHHECRFEREZKE -

subsequent to year end.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

17. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

17. RS RBITHEER

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20194 20184F

12A31H 12A31H

Group RM’000 RM’000
REE F£5 To&HFR
Cash on hand and at banks FHRE RRITTER 7,189 8,345
Deposits with licensed banks REFEIEITHER 18,908 10,006
26,097 18,351

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank

RITFERRRIBEES B RITHERFEXEFERN

deposit rates. Deposits with licensed banks are made for varying
periods between 1 day and 3 months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, except for a deposit amounting
to RM5,000 as at 31 December 2018 which has a maturity term
of 365 days. The deposit amounting to RM5,000 has been fully
withdrawn as at 31 December 2019. During the financial year
ended 31 December 2019, the interest rates of short-term deposits
of the Group range from 3.10% to 3.55% (2018: from 3.10% to
3.95%) per annum.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash

FE)F R BRELF S o RIF R IRTTH TR
HREE N T—RE=ZFAFTE KT
REBMANRIR S FHKME - R20185F12
H31H5,000%2 5 HMFHERIN ZEFHM
ZIHAEAMR A365°K < 102019F12A31H » &%
5,000% &H 7 3B B EUREL - B Z=2019
FI2A AL BFE  NEBLHER
B & F BN F3.10%23.55% (20184 :
3.10%%E3.95% ) °

REARERERME  REERH Re

and cash equivalents comprise the following at the reporting date: ;EeEEMRETMEE:
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
2019 20184
12A31H 12H31H
RM’000 RM’000
FELEHH FLER
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTES 26,097 18,351
Less: Deposit with a licensed bank with NIRRT
maturity more than 3 months (EIEA B BR B B3R A ) - )
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 26,097 18,346
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E
18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 18. ES R HMEFIE

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20194 20184
128318 12H31H
Group RM’000 RM’000
rE <E To&HFR
Trade payables B S RNRE
Third parties F=H 969 865
Amounts due to related parties FEA B 5 BB 224 232
1,193 1,097
Other payables HihEFRE
Accruals Bt & A 1,634 3,172
Sundry payables o e 5RE 328 353
Deferred revenue IR T Y 2 28 32
SST/GST payable FEA ARAS R, 78 an S AR A R 171 120
2,161 3,677
Total trade and other payables ESREMENSREEATE 3,354 4,774
Add: Loans and borrowings (Note 19) - EFRRER (HE19) 16,388 18,406
Add: Lease liabilities (Note 20) - HEEEE (FFEE20) 305 372
Less: Deferred revenue R (28) (32)
Less: SST/GST payable B T AR FSEE T AR TS R (171) (120)
Total other financial liabilities Httm#@e R At E8m
at amortised cost SREERE 19,848 23,400
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18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 18. ES K HMEFIE (&)
An ageing analysis of the trade payables at the end of the reporting RIRERREZFENRBENEEZLHN
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BREEDITIAT -

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H
Group RM’000 RM’000
E LEHEE FoEHR
Within 1 month 1E A A 435 445
1 to 2 months 12218 A 556 393
2 to 3 months 22318 A - 20
Over 3 months @AM E 202 239
1,193 1,097
Trade payables BESENNRE
These amounts are non-interest bearing and the normal trade terms ZEFRBTEE  EEMNEZHRAI0K -
are 30 days.
Sundry payables H b e FRIE
These amounts are non-interest bearing. Other payables are FZEFIBET S o B M FE S 3R M T 126 1E
normally settled on an average term of 6 months. REF R R
Deferred revenue 3 Uk 2
This relates to advanced biling to customers for the provision of ZHBEHEEER—FRNETNE L EER
output management services that is to be satisfied within one year. BREFIEMFAENESEEH-
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19. LOANS AND BORROWINGS 19. B RMER

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

148

20194 2018%F
128318 12H31H
Group RM’000 RM’000
rE <E To&HFR
Current RE
Secured: HIKE
Term loan 1 EHE 2,136 1,995
Less: Unamortised transaction costs T R SH T B RS (18) (20)
2,118 1,075
Non-current FERE
Secured: HIKE
Term loan 1 FEHIE 14,384 16,563
Less: Unamortised transaction costs W R SR (114) (132)
14,270 16,431
Total loans and borrowings BERREREEHE 16,388 18,406
Unamortised transaction costs REBETH R
At beginning of the year REH) 152 -
Incurred during the year FRNESE - 159
Amortisation for the year (Note 6) F R (H5E6) (20) (7)
At end of the year RER 132 152
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

19. ERRMEK (4#)
RERERRERNBTHMEMT :

19. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (Continued)

The remaining maturities of the loans and borrowings at year end
are as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H
Group RM’000 RM’000
rEEH SEH FLER
Within 1 year 1F R 2,118 1,975
Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years B EBRER2F 2,220 2,075
Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years BR2F BT ENSF 7,337 6,891
Later than 5 years BHSF 4,713 7,465
16,388 18,406

Term loan 1 (floating rate) EHEF1CEEFIR)

Term loan 1 of RM19,000,000 was drawn down in 2018 for
working capital purposes and to finance the listing exercise of the
Group. The term loan is repayable by 96 monthly instalments and is
secured by:

(i) first party open charge over the factory building of the Group;

(i) first party open charge over shoplot of the Group; and

(i) joint and several guarantee by the directors of the Group.

The interest rate per annum at the reporting date for the loans and
borrowings are as follows:

19,000,000% & #F /) & HI B B1 7420184
RECFAREEECHBRRALAEEN £
MEBRHTEES THERHWBEARE A
B WA T YIS I8 e R

() HAEEIWEFHE—FARM
a0

iy HAEEFHEHOE—F L HE
i K

(iy AEBEEFHHERERIER-

ERRERNIRE R RNEMNENT

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20195 20184

12A31H 12H31H

Group % %
KEE % %
Term loan 1 EHE 4.75 4.90
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

20. LEASE LIABILITIES 2. HEEE
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
20194 2018%F
128318 12H31H
Group RM’000 RM’000
rE <5 FLER
Current RE
Lease payment on office premise WAREMEMRERK 71 67
Non-current FERE
Lease payment on office premise WAREMEMRERK 234 305
Total lease liabilities HEBERRE 305 372
Set out below is the movement in lease liabilities: TXHINEHEBENE S -

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

2019F 20184

12A31H 12H31H

RM’000 RM’000

FLEHH FoEHR

At beginning of the year REH] 372 404
Accretion of interest (Note 6) FEAE A (B FE6) 17 19
Payment of lease liabilities INHEEAE (84) (51)
At end of the year RER 305 372
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # Z22019F 12831 H 181 B F/E

20. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 20. HESE ()

The remaining maturities of the lease liabilities at year end are as
follows:

RERHEEABENHK THMALT

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20195 20184

12A31H 12H31H

Group RM’000 RM’000
rEEH SEH FLER
Within 1 year 1F R 71 67
Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years B FEERNER2F 74 71
Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years BR2F BT ENSF 160 234
305 372

The interest rates per annum at the reporting date for the lease
liabilities are as follows:

HEBERRE AHNFN=MAT:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20195 20184

12A31H 12H31H

Group % %
rEHE % %
Lease payment on office premise WAEMEMRERK 4.90 4.90
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912431 H 181 B F/E

21. SHARE CAPITAL 21. R
The Company was incorporated as an exempted company ARQAFR2018F6 13 EME B S
with limited liability in the Cayman Island on 13 June 2018 with R RERRERRG BEERER
authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 380,000/8 7t * 7 438,000,0000% & I &
shares of HK$0.01 each. 0.018 TTAIAR 1D ©
On 13 June 2018, () one share was issued and allotted to an 201868138 » ()— A B #2 M {E0.01
independent third party and then transferred from the same to Flash BB RS T BB E=F kAR
Dragon Company Limited (“Flash Dragon”) at par value of HK$0.01, H#E:% FFlash Dragon Company Limited
and (i) 99 and 100 fully paid ordinary shares were allotted and (TFlash Dragon]) * K (i))99A% 52 1008% £
issued to Flash Dragon and Jupiter Rain Company Limited (“Jupiter T E B PR E (AR % & # 1T TFlash
Rain”) respectively, at par value. Flash Dragon and Jupiter Rain are Dragon X Jupiter Rain Company Limited
ultimately owned by Frank Ling and Will Ling respectively. ([ Jupiter Rain |) ° Flash Dragon } Jupiter
Rain% 5l fFrank Ling RWill Ling#x 4 #
5o
Number
of shares HK$
RoOEE BT
Authorised: ERE:
At 13 June 2018 (date of incorporation), H2018F6 71308 (i A H) »
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 201812 A31H Kk2019%F
12H31H 38,000,000 380,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At 13 June 2018 (date of incorporation), 1K2018F6 3138 (AL HER) »
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 2018412 A31H K&20194F
12H31H 200 2
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22,

23.

MERGER RESERVE

At 31 December 2018, merger reserve represents the aggregate of
the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group,
pursuant to the Reorganisation as detailed in Note 1 above.

At 31 December 2019, following the completion of the
Reorganisation, merger reserve represents the excess of the
aggregate of the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries over the
consideration paid to effect the transfer of shares in Coeus
Systems, Compugraphic Media and C-Link Malaysia as stated on
Note 1.

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Sale and purchase of goods and services

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere
in the financial statements, the following significant transactions

between the Group and its related parties took place at terms
agreed between the parties during the financial years:

22, SftfEE

R2018F12A31H » & HrREMFEIEBRIE £X
MFE ATl A AR E A AN EBIREFFE T

B8 A R R PR AN R

2019512 A31H  EHTHK & - & O
HEWB AT NS ERANEEBBRMN
sE1P7 it Coeus Systems  Compugraphic
Media & C-Link Malaysia#i% 17 823 3 {19

REES -

23. EXBEBARS

BEEmmKRE

B MR EAMM T BRI B R
Sh AEBEERR ) 2 HM TR EAR
SN E 2% 77 10 5E M IR TT

1.1.2019 to 1.1.2018 to

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20195 2018%F

1A1HZ 1H1BZ

20195 20184

12A81H 12H31H

Group RM'000 RM'000

rE SHEE FoHR
Related parties: RAEE T -

Purchase of goods BE®m 973 1,394

Director: B%:
Rental payable e 84 51

Information regarding outstanding balances arising from related
party transactions as at reporting date are disclosed in Notes 16
and 18.

BRNREAHBEBIRIELNRER
i

HEBERHEENME16K&18
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23. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY 23. EXBEBAIRS (&)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Compensation of key management personnel FEEBEASEHMH
Key management personnel are those persons having the authority FTEERABRERREETEERHE
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities HE BELRESIAEEEHNHAE B
of the Group either directly or indirectly including any directors. FRES-

1.1.2019 to 1.1.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20194 2018%F
1A1HZ 1H1B®E
20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
& F£&5 FLER
Fees we - 160
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEEYH S 2,143 1,492
Pension scheme contributions BRIRE B 199 164
2,342 1,816

Included in total key management personnel FTEEBEAEBTMWRBRE:

compensation are:

Directors’ remuneration (Note 10) EEFHH (HE10) 1,860 1,754
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24.

25.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24, €T ENAFE
Financial instruments that are not carried at WHEAFEFREHEEAES QT
fair value and whose carrying amounts are ENEEENENERTIA
reasonable approximation of fair value
The following are classes of financial instruments that are not T AIIERATFEIREARAERAR
carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are reasonable FEMEEIOUENSRI T ANER:
approximation of fair value:
Note
Bt
Trade and other receivables B 5 & HAth fE UL GRIE 16
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk EAM RN FRIB 18
Loans and borrowings ERRER 19
The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are ZECREERBENRABERRTEN
reasonable approximation of fair values, either due to their short- SIAME  REAHEME stA AR
term nature or that they are floating rate instruments that are re- WERMSAEEFREERMIG N EMNF
priced to market interest rates on or near the reporting date or the BAETHE KBRMNEETTEK
impact of discounting is insignificant.
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 25. B RMEEBEZRBR

AND POLICIES

The Group’s financial risk management policy is to ensure that
adequate financial resources are available for the development of
the Group’s operations whilst managing its financial risks, including
credit risk, interest risk and liquidity risk.

The Group operates within clearly defined guidelines that are
approved by the Board and the Group’s policy is not to engage in
speculative transactions.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s
exposure to the above-mentioned financial risks and the objectives,
policies and processes for the management of these risks.
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 25. Bi#EERE B ERER (4)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Credit risk (@ FERR

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arises principally from its receivables from
customers and deposits with banks and financial institutions.

The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties. Management has a credit policy
in place to control credit risk by dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and deposit with banks and financial
institutions with good credit rating. The exposure to credit risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis and action will be taken for
long outstanding debts.

Exposure to credit risk

At the reporting date, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
class of financial assets recognised in the statement of
financial position.

Credit risk concentration profile

The Group’s customers are financial institutions which include
banks and insurance companies.

As at 31 December 2019, there were two customers (2018:

four customers) accounted for 36% (2018: 63%) of the total
net trade receivables.
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 25. Bfi§REBaEE B F R BUR ()

AND POLICIES (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued) (@ FEERE (&)
Credit risk concentration profile (Continued) EERBREPMRRT (F)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. As the customers are mainly financial institutions and
insurance companies in Malaysia with similar loss patterns,
the provision rates are based on days past due of the overall
trade receivables. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix
to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults in the financial IT services sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. The
assessment of the correlation between historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
an estimate. The Group’s historical credit loss experience
and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual default in the future.

Generally, trade receivables are written-off if past due for
more than two years and are not subject to enforcement
activity. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets
disclosed in Note 16. The Group does not hold collateral as
security.
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 25. B EMREEBZERBUER (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued) (@ FEERE (&)
Credit risk concentration profile (Continued) EERREPRR (F)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk LATHEHINEBAEEE S EWFIEA
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision FRABBERMNEERBRNER :
matrix:
Estimated total
Expected gross carrying
credit loss amount at Expected
rate default credit loss
BHEE fEEHERN BHfE
EEE REEAE EFR
Group % RM’000 RM’000
r5E % T<E F<E
31 December 2019 2019512A31H
Neither past due nor impaired SARBENARE 0.12% 7,571 9
1 to 30 days past due not impaired i1 E30KE R EE 0.03% 3,203 1
31 to 60 days past due not impaired #1331 260K {8 K (& 0.40% 3,285 13
61 to 90 days past due not impaired 1 #3612 90K {8 K (& 0.40% 1,245 5
More than 90 days past due not BHIOKR A EBKRE
impaired 15.73% 4,691 738
Total Fohy 16.68% 19,995 766
31 December 2018 2018%12H31H
Neither past due nor impaired RGN KAE 0.06% 6,656 4
1 to 30 days past due not impaired %181 E30K B KRB (E 0.02% 4,824 1
31 to 60 days past due not impaired #1331 260K {8 K (& 0.42% 3,030 13
61 to 90 days past due not impaired 1 #3612 90K {8 K i (& 0.34% 1,162 4
More than 90 days past due not BHIOAR A EBKRE
impaired 17.82% 3,221 574
Total Fohy 18.67% 18,893 596
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of the Group’s financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk arising from
bank borrowings. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate
fluctuations. However, it is the Group’s policy to obtain the
most favourable interest rates available whenever the Group
obtains additional financing through bank borrowings.

The information on maturity dates and effective interest rates
of financial liabilities is disclosed in their respective notes.

Interest rate sensitivity

The Group’s term loans at floating rates were denominated
in Ringgit Malaysia. At the reporting date, if interest rates
had been 50 basis point higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit before tax would have been
lower/higher, as follows:

25 HBEREEBERRBK (&)

(b)

FI =R = b
MERBAAEESMTANHAF
Bl AR RIRE 7 E N A TS F R &
&) 17 R B AT A5 2R A R B

AR BAAFERITERELHNHN
Bk AEELEERITESRT A
Hm E M EORE R o AT - AEE
MR EBRITEFMEFEIRE
VESREBEME-

FHREEINMARERM XN
ERREamMERIE-

NEGRE
AEEZIHFEGFENEHER
TIABRAGD S ERHTE - RIRER
B EEHGBEEEFTENIER
T AR BT ERG0MEEE - Al
7 52 B e B B AT U R 1N -
LN

1.1.2019 to 1.1.2018 to

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20195 20184

181HZ 1H1EZE

20194 20184

12A31H 12H31H

Group RM'000 RM'000
AEHE <E ko
Effect on profit before tax HRE RN E 89 34

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest
rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable
market environment.
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

160

AND POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from
mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities.

The Group’s funding requirements and liquidity risk are
managed with the objective of meeting business obligations
on a timely basis. The Group finances its liquidity through
internally generated cash flows and minimises liquidity risk by
keeping committed credit lines available.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the
Group’s liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual
undiscounted repayment obligations.

25. HBEREEBERRBK (&)

(c)

REESE AR
mBETRREAEERABITHE
M AR AR R - AR EE M
RPETRBRIERETREEN
BEDH AR -

AEENESFRLRRDES AR
MEREERBBITEBERL A&
EEBARMELNRSRERER
PELREES  WEBRIEATAN
GRS BRI A& KRR E i R
BESAR-

TREMNIHE B HERE LRI
BEEBNASERGBIHER-

On demand
or within Two to More than
one year five years five years Total
BERY
R-FR —ZRE EENE @t
Group RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
K& L LT LT LT
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31H
Financial liabilities tRARE
Trade payables and other payables ~ E S ERFHERE
o (TR 3,155 - - 3,155
Loans and borrowings ERRER 2,809 11,502 4,954 19,265
Lease liabilities HEERE 84 252 - 336
6,048 11,754 4,954 22,756
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12831H
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade payables and other payables & ZERFUE R
Hit (5B 4,622 - - 4,622
Loans and borrowings ERRER 2,797 11,503 8,075 22,375
Leas liabilties HEERE 84 336 - 420
7,503 11,839 8,075 271,417

All financial liabilities of the Company are repayable on
demand or within one year.
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26. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 26. RIEETHESXNEEEH
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loans and Total
borrowings liabilities from
Lease (excluding Dividend financing
liabilities overdraft) payable activities
METEH
ERRER EEWN
HEEE (FEEEX) ERRE SENE
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
FLE TLE FLE FLE
(Note 20) (Note 19)
(KHaE20) (HtzE19)
1 January 2018 2018%F181H 404 1,917 14,800 17,121
Dividend declared (Note 28) BEIRKRE (H3E28) - - 7,000 7,000
Dividend paid BRRE - - (21,800) (21,800)
Drawdown of borrowing RRER - 19,000 - 19,000
Payments for transaction costs RS - (159) - (159)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEREaE (51) - - (51)
Repayment of term loan BETHER - (442) - (442)
Interest expense FIEBRX 19 384 - 403
Amortisation of transaction costs RS H - 7 - 7
Interest paid 2RFIE - (305) - (305)
Others Hi - (1,996) - (1,996)
31 December 2018 2018%12A31H 372 18,406 - 18,778
1 January 2019 2019F1A1H 372 18,406 - 18,778
Repayment of lease liabilities EBEREAR (84) - - (64)
Repayment of term loan BETHER - (2,038) - (2,038)
Interest expense FBHX 17 878 - 895
Amortisation of transaction costs RGRAEH - 20 - 20
Interest paid BHFIE - (890) - (890)
Others Hity - 12 - 12
31 December 2019 2019F12A31H 305 16,388 - 16,693

The “Others” line item includes the effect of accrued interest [Efh] BB BEERREREF B K
on loans and borrowings and repayment of a term loan by AEBEFEETHERNEE -ZEH
directors of the Group. This term loan was obtained in 2007 BERR2007F &R UAKEASEES
to finance the acquisition of a residential property owned by BERNTEDERE REERGE S
the directors of the Group. Pursuant to the loan agreement, (ERERAN) RAEEANERE (ERE
both the directors (as borrowers) and an entity within of the BA)RRAAEERET -ZTEHERER
Group (as assignor) are jointly liable to repay. This term loan 2018 FHASBESTEHEE-

was fully settled by the directors of the Group in 2018.
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27.

162

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management is to maintain a strong capital
base and safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and maintains an optimal capital structure, so as to
maximise shareholders value. Management reviews the capital
structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with the capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio. The Group’s
policy is to maintain a prudent level of gearing ratio that complies
with debt covenant and regulatory requirement. The gearing ratios
at end of the reporting period are as follows:

27. EEERE

AEENERNEEEEMFBRANEARE
o REARESELENES WK
ENEARE  NERREESAL B2
BEBEREAKAREEARENRER
LA B AR ©

REFRABERRE AEEHSHE
RN TR E SR  MRRFEEAR
BT EEENRDER -

AEBEFEREERBLXEEER - NE
BHBRREEBEENEEARBLE U
HEBEBRAREERTE RMEHRL
BEABHEET:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

20194 20184

12A31H 12H31H

RM’000 RM’000

FLEHR FLER

Loans and borrowings BERRER 16,388 18,406
Lease liabilities HEAE 305 372
Trade and other payables B 5 M HEAENFIR 3,354 4,774
Less: Cash and bank balances R RIRIT R (26,097) (18,351)
Net (asset)/debt (BE)/aE%s (6,050) 5,201

Equity attributable to the owners representing B AE{G 1z fE BN

total capital 47,992 34,939
Capital and net (asset)/debt BEARR(BE) /BEFH 41,942 40,140
Gearing ratio BEBEKLE - 13%

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital
management during the financial year.
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28. DIVIDENDS

Dividends paid in respect of ordinary shares for the financial years

are as follows:

28. RE

MPRFEIRA T BB SNT

1.1.2019 to 1.1.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
20194 20184
118 % 1H1RZE
20194 20184
12A381H 12H31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
e FLEE ToEH
Recognised during the financial year: R BEERR:
Dividends on ordinary shares: TERARE
— Tax exempt (single-tier) dividend for - B (BE)RE
2018: Compugraphic Media 20184F : Compugraphic Media
— 250.00 cent per share — & %250.00% - 6,000
2018: Coeus Systems 20184F : Coeus Systems
— 41.67 cent per share —ER41.675H - 1,000
- 7,000
1.1.2019 to 1.1.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
2019 20184
1A18 & 1A1B=
2019 20184
12A31H 12A31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
rEE F<&H FoHR
Proposed but not recognised as RERBEZRERBERAEE
a liabilities as at year end
Dividends on ordinary shares: TERIRE
— Tax exempt dividend for 2019: C-Link —2019F R F AR B C-Link
Squared Limited — RM65,000 per share Squared Limited
—3[5%65,000% & 13,000 -

On 12 March 2020, the Company declared and paid an interim
tax exempt dividend in respect of 31 December 2019, amounting
to approximately RM13 million representing RM65,000 per share
which was paid on 14 March 2020. The dividend will be accounted
for in equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial

year ending 31 December 2020.

Moy IR AR & o
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29. SEGMENT INFORMATION 29. HEEH
For management purposes, the Group has only one reportable REEMS AEEERF —FrRELE
operating segment, which is the provision of outsourced data and DES - BB EINHIBUR R XU E R ARTS o BB
document management services. Since this is the only operating RESAEEE—LELES3 WAL ES
segment of the Group, no further operating segment analysis P EE— D F DT o
thereof is presented.
The Group’s revenue from external customers was derived solely AEBREGINPEFMNZEEREER
from its operations in Malaysia, and the non-current assets of the HBIRF R W ETE - i 7 20194F 2018412
Group were located in Malaysia as at 31 December 2019 and A3 -AEEMNERBEELNFRA
2018. op °
(a) Geographical information (@) HIHER
Geographical information for the Group is presented in Note AEE MR ER 2T AK 4.1 -
4.1.
(b) Information about major customers b) EBEXTEEFMNER
Revenue from top 5 customer groups of the Group’s revenue REEREHERERAEREARE
for each reporting period is set out below: FHARIMK=EHZINT
Representing
% of total Sales
revenue amount
EE ATy
Btk SHER
Group RM’000
A& F<H
For the financial year ended BZ2019F12A31H LB EE
31 December 2019
Bank Group A RITEEA 18.53% 13,254
Bank Group B RITEEB 14.47% 10,350
Bank Group C RITEEC 11.65% 8,330
Insurance Group D RiE&EED 10.49% 7,500
Retail Customer E TEXPFE 5.74% 4,103
Total et 60.88% 43,537
For the financial year ended HZ2018F12A31H LM EE
31 December 2018
Bank Group A RITEEA 21.48% 14,411
Bank Group B RITEEB 16.90% 11,337
Bank Group C fEﬁ;‘%lc 11.91% 7,991
Insurance Group D REaEE 9.45% 6,338
Insurance Group F RigEE 6.74% 4,529
Total et 66.48% 44,606
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 30. A2 B EikRE
COMPANY FA SR 25 BSR4 RS 22 T B RS AR 5 M0 B R

Information about the statement of financial position of the U
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
20195 20184F
12A31H 12H31H
RM’000 RM’000
FELEH FLEHEE
Assets EE
Non-current asset EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR NRE 1 -
Current assets REEE
Other receivables Hh fE YR IE 2,961 1,388
Cash and bank balances & RIRTTHE S 42 -
3,003 1,388
Total assets EEHE 3,004 1,388
Equity and liabilities BEREE
Current liability RBEE
Other payables o fE S 5RIE 11,397 5,474
Net current liabilities FREBEEREE (8,394) (4,086)
Net liabilities EEFH (8,393) (4,086)
Equity s
Share capital fi& 2= - -
Accumulated losses 2ETEE (8,393) (4,086)
Total equity EEEE (8,393) (4,086)
Total equity and liabilities EEREBEE 3,004 1,388

2019 3}  C-Link Squared Limited
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 30. &2 B8 #ARM &K (&)

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: B 5E
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RABIREEORENT :
1.1.2019 to 1.1.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
20195 20184
1A1BZ 1A18ZE
2019 20184F
12A831H 12A31H
RM’000 RM’000
°% L%
Accumulated losses 2B
At beginning of the year/period REE) (4,086) -
Total comprehensive loss S HEEBER (4,307) (4,086)
At end of the year/period REHIR (8,393) (4,086)
31. SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 31. EXHEEE
(@) Increase of authorised share capital (@) EERAEM
On 11 March 2020, the Company’s shareholders approved R2020F3A11H AR A R EHE
the increase of authorised share capital of the Company from VE iR 1% R% B8 HM ,462,000,000%
HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares of a par value of REE.OVE TR M FAR
HK$0.01 each to HK$15,000,000 divided into 1,500,000,000 A% 7E I A 380,000 T (9 A&
shares of a par value of HK$0.01 each by the creation of an 38,000,000% & fi% E {£0.01% 7T &
additional 1,462,000,000 shares of a par value of HK$0.01 % 1) 1 £15,000,000% 7T (9 A
each. 1,500,000,0008% & fi% HE 180.01/% 7T
BIRR D) ©
(b) Capitalisation issue (b) ERHBIT

Pursuant to the resolutions of the shareholder passed on
11 March 2020, the Company allotted and issued a total of
599,999,800 ordinary shares, credited as fully paid at par, to
Flash Dragon Company Limited and Jupiter Rain Company
Limited equally on 27 March 2020 by way of capitalisation of
the sum of HK$5,999,998 standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company.
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31. SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Listing of the shares

In connection with the listing of the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange, 200,000,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each of the Company were issued at a price
of HK$0.63 per share for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of HK$126,000,000. Dealings in the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange commenced on 27 March
2020.

Outbreak of Coronavirus

The wide spread pandemic of the novel Coronavirus in
Malaysia and other countries in the world since the beginning
of 2020 is a fluid and challenging situation facing all industries
today. The Malaysian Government has also implemented
a Movement Control Order (“MCQO”) on 18 March 2020
whereby, citizens are not encouraged to work at commercial
buildings or be at public areas other than for groceries,
medication or is a person in the essential industry. The Group
is involved in the provision of essential services and is allowed
by Bank Negara Malaysia to operate during the MCO period.
The Group is in the midst of assessing the overall impact
of the situation on the operation of the Group and taken all
possible effective measures to limit and keep the impact in
control, given the fluid situation. The Group will continuously
monitor the changes of the situation and make timely
response and adjustments in the future.

31. EAHMKEE®

(c)

(d)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #{Z20199F 12531 H 1F F/Z

A summary of the audited consolidated results and assets and liabilities of ~ ANEE & A KB FEENEBIRGEEER

the Group for the past four financial years is set out below: BENBEBENT:
RESULTS ¥E
Year ended 31 December
HEZ12A31ALEE
2019 2018 2017 2016
20194 20185 20175 201645
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
FLER FLEH FLEH TLEH
Revenue Yz 71,526 67,095 71,044 68,198
Profit before tax B A& 7 19,015 16,615 14,546 12,099
Income tax expense TSR = (5,962) (4,835) (3,391) (2,884)
Profit for the year F R A 13,053 11,780 11,155 9,215
Profit for the year attributable to: EEEREF:
Owners of the Company E/NSIEZ 2SN 13,053 11,780 11,155 9,215
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
At 31 December
®12831H
2019 2018 2017 2016
20195 20185 20175 201645
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
SEH TLEHER FLEH FLER
Total assets BEE 70,234 60,244 53,854 51,227
Total liabilities BEE (22,242) (25,305) (23,695) (12,423)
47,992 34,939 30,159 38,804
Total equity attributable to: LB
Owners of the Company KAREA A 47,992 34,939 30,195 38,804

Note: The summary of financial information of the Group for the years of 2016 to  Fi7E: AEE2016F Z2018FMENIEE R B RER 5 1A

2018 have been extracted from the Prospectus. Since the Company was f% ZFE - B A A R20209F3 A27 H E B X BT £
listed on the Stock Exchange on 27 March 2020, the financial information for AR WEFEREZ2015F12A318 ILFEH
the year ended 31 December 2015 has not been prepared. The summary AR LM E W N EKEE R G mE
above does not form part of the audited financial statements. H)—E05 °
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DEFINITIONS

BE

The following expressions shall, unless the content otherwise states, have X E S BTN A T A= EE T HEE -

the following meanings:

“2020 AGM”

[2020F I RIBE KRS

“Articles”

AR

“Audit Committee”

[EZEEE]

“Board”
[EF2)

“Code Provision(s)”
[<FBIEX ]

“Company” or “our Company”

NS

“Companies Law”

[RENE]

“Companies Ordinance”
[ & 1E&HI ]

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ 2R R

the 2020 annual general meeting of the company to be held on Monday, 29
June 2020
KRR TER20206F6 H29F (28 —) BITH2020F RFBERE

the memorandum and articles of association of our Company as amended
from time to time

ARRNEBERAM AR (EREHERT)

the audit committee of the Company

ARREZEREE®

the board of Directors

B9

the British Virgin Islands
REBELHES

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, as amended from time to time
TR BT SR 14FTE KR EEVRSTAD (BAFHEET)

the code provisions set out in the CG Code
EERTAMEFRIEX

C-Link Squared Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, the issued shares of which are listed and traded on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1463)

C-Link Squared Limited - AF S BB LMK LW ER R ER AR KB #T
M An FERE S PR AR = R B & (AR 5% - 1463)

the Companies Law (as revised) of the Cayman lIslands, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
FHEHERRNE (FER])  BIRHERT s A = 75 &2

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BN F622F A Bl &)

Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang, Mr Ling Sheng Chung, Flash Dragon Company
Limited and Jupiter Rain Company Limited, being the controlling shareholders
of our Company

Ling Sheng Hwang?t 4 - Ling Sheng Chung?t 4 * Flash Dragon Company
Limited & Jupiter Rain Company Limited ( A&7 A &) #9 #22 BEA% 52 )
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DEFINITIONS
BE

“Deed”
[3245]

“Directors”

[E%]

now » oo«

“Group”, “our Group”,
“our’ or “us”

We”,

[ARSRE ] e [ F)

“Hong Kong”

(&%)

“HK$”, “HKD”, “Hong Kong dollar(s)”
or “cent(s)”

[E7T] = &L

“Listing”
[ 7]

“Listing Date”
[ E7 B A
“Listing Rules”
[ Em#R A

“Main Board”

[ER]

the deed of non-competition
TE SR

the director(s) of our Company

ARRESR

our Company and its subsidiaries (or our Company and any one or more of
its subsidiaries, as the content may require) or, where the context so requires,
in respect of the period before our Company became the holding company
of its present subsidiaries, the present subsidiaries of our Company and the
businesses carried on by such subsidiaries or (as the case may be) their
respective predecessors

AR REMBAR (XARAREEMN—KAZHKMELAR  BTFRNEH
BME)  RANERT  RARRIKAER BN E R R R A F 2 AT
B AEARREINBREENBE AR RZEMB AR AR ENERL (RFER
imE) KRES B SRR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
hEEESRITTRE

Hong Kong dollar(s) and cent(s), respectively, the lawful currency of Hong
Kong
EBEETEE B T REN

the listing of Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
PR 7B 32 P AR T

27 March 2020, the date on which dealings in the Shares on the Main Board
first commence

20203 R27H B EAFRBREEREEM A

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

TREH ETRA (ETRERT T RA LM I N ERR)

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock
Exchange which is independent from and operating in parallel with the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange

MR PMEENRB RS (T BIEMRETS) - B R FTGEMIL B 2
WATEME
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DEFINITIONS

BE

“Model Code”
[Z2E=F Al ]
“Mr. F Ling”
[F Lingt & |

“Mr. S Ling”
[S Ling7t 4 |

“Mr. W Ling”
[W Ling%t 4 |

“Nomination Committeg”

[fREZEBEE

“Prospectus”

[HiER]

“Remuneration Committee’

[FrENZE g

“Reporting Period”
[R5 51

“RM” or “RM cents”
[2ER] S [SF R

“Senior Management”
SRERE]

“Share Option Scheme”
[RE T 21

“Share(s)”
[R5 ]

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, as amended from time to time
EMRAIMER10FTE ( LB ITAEFTEITES R SHOITLESFR) (KK
f557)

Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang
Ling Sheng Hwang?t 4

Mr. Ling Sheng Shyan
Ling Sheng Shyan?t 4

Mr. Ling Sheng Chung
Ling Sheng Chung?t 4

the nomination committee of the Company

ARAREERE®

the prospectus of the Company dated 17 March 2020
RNARHEIA2020F3 A17A K BRER

the remuneration committee of the Company

ARRFHMEE S

the year ended 31 December 2019
EZE2019F12A31H IEEFE

Ringgit and Ringgit cents, the lawful currency of Malaysia
BARATEEEB TR RS E R

the senior management of the Company
RAREMERE

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong
EEEFLHEEBEREZESR

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended and supplemented from time to time

FREPIFSERZ RAEIRY (BTRERT RAHF)

the share option scheme adopted by our Company on 11 March 2020
AR EHR20209F3 A 11 B R A 80 B Ak 2 51 &1

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of our Company
AR RRAH FAREEO0.018 T H) ik
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DEFINITIONS
BE

“Shareholder(s)”
e

“Stock Exchange” or “HKEX”
[ B8 22 BT | 3 [HKEX J

“Takeovers Code”

[ = BRIl

gy
[% ]

the holder(s) of the Shares
D SUESZ=DN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

EEBMARXZAAERRE

the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs issued by the
SFC, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
BEERME (RAWE 0 RRHEBESFAD) (BTRER] MR

Hih = &ek)
per cent
Aotk
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